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Acronyms, Abbreviations and 
Glossary of Terms

A:	 Acronyms and Abbreviations
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Fiduciary Management -  Members of Management directly entrusted with 			 

                                        the responsibility of financial resources of the organisation

Comparative Year	  -   Means the prior year.

B: 	 Glossary of Terms
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(a)	 Background information
The Nuclear Power and Energy Agency (NuPEA) is 
a State Corporation established under the Energy 
Act 2019 on 12th of March 2019. NuPEA is charged 
with the responsibility of promoting and imple-
menting Kenya’s nuclear power programme, car-
rying out research and development for the ener-
gy sector and Capacity Building in the Energy and 
Petroleum Sectors.
Towards attainment of its mandate, NuPEA shall 
develop policies and legislation, undertake public 
education and awareness, identify suitable sites for 
the construction of Nuclear Power Plants; carry out 
research, development and innovation on energy 
technologies as well as capacity building for the 
energy sector. 

(b)	 Principal Activities
The Agency’s mandate as stipulated in Section 
56(1) of the Energy Act, 2019, are to:

a.	 Be the nuclear energy programme im-
plementing organisation and promote 
the development of nuclear electricity 
generation in Kenya; and

b.	 Carry out research, development and 
dissemination activities in the energy and 
petroleum sectors in Kenya.

2
Key Entity Information and Management

The Agency’s broad functions are to:
i.	 Promote the development of nuclear 

electricity generation in Kenya;
ii.	 Undertake public education and aware-

ness creation on Kenya’s nuclear power 
programme;

iii.	 Carry out research and development in 
the energy and petroleum sectors;

iv.	 Disseminate research findings and inno-
vations; and

v.	 Undertake capacity building in the ener-
gy and petroleum sectors.

The specific functions of the Agency are as stipu-
lated in Section56(2) of the Energy Act, 2019.

 (c)	 Key Management
The Agency day-to-day management is under the 
following key organs:

.	 Board of Directors

.	 Chief Executive Officer

.	 Heads of Departments

(d)	 Fiduciary Management
The key management personnel who held office 
during the financial year ended 30th June 2024 
and who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

Table 1: Fiduciary Management in NuPEA

No. Designation Name

1 Chief Executive Officer CS Justus A. Wabuyabo

2 Director, Publicity and Advocacy Mr.Basset Buyukah

3 Director, Strategy and Planning Dr. Winfred Ndubai (PhD)

4 Director, Nuclear Energy Infrastructure Development Eng. Erick Ohaga

5 Manager, Finance and Accounts CPA Caren Oduor

6 Manager, Internal Audit CPA Peter Ndungu

7 Manager, Supply Chain Dr. Anthony Lusuli(PhD)

8 Manager, ICT Mr.Lawrence Siele

9 Manager, Human Resource and Administration CHRP Benedict Njuguna
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Figure 1: Mission, Vision and Core Values
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(e)	 Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements
The key fiduciary oversight arrangements for the 
Agency for the financial year 2023/24 included:

i.	 The Board Audit Committee
	 The Board Audit Committee assesses 

effectiveness of the Agency’s internal 
control and risk management and com-
pliance framework, it reviews the impact 
of significant accounting and reporting 
issues such as professional and regulato-
ry pronouncement; meets management 
and both external and internal auditors 
to review the financial statements and 
results of the audit process and assesses 
if generally accepted accounting princi-
ples have been consistently applied in the 
preparation of preliminary announcement 
& interim financial statements.

ii.	 The Board Human Resource & Gener-
al-Purpose Committee

	 The Human Resource & General-Purpose 
Committee reviews, and as appropriate, 
act on behalf of the Board, or make rec-
ommendations to the Board concerning 
Human Resource and Administration, Le-
gal, and Publicity policies and procedures.

iii.	 The Board Technical & Research Commit-
tee

	 The Technical and Research Committee to 
review, and as appropriate, act on behalf 
of the Board, or make recommendations 
to the Board concerning infrastructure is-
sues for the successful implementation of 
a nuclear power programme in Kenya.

iv.	 The Board Finance, Strategy & Planning 
Committee

	 The Finance Strategy and Planning Com-
mittee reviews, and as appropriate, acts 
on behalf of the Board, or makes recom-
mendations to the Board concerning Fi-
nance, ICT, Strategy & Planning issues and 
Procurement policies and procedures.

v.	 Parliamentary Oversight Committees
	 Parliament has a constitutional mandate 

to scrutinise government spending and 
oversight functions of the Agency. The Na-
tional Assembly, through its committees, 
exercises oversight over national revenue 
and expenditure.

vi.	 Inspectorate of State Corporations
	 The Inspectorate of State Corporation is 

tasked with ensuring an efficient public 
management system in parastatals and 
undertakes management audits in State 
Corporations to ensure compliance with 
set policies, rules and procedures; and pro-
viding advisory services to Government 
and other stakeholders on matters affect-
ing State Corporations.

vii.	 International Atomic Energy Agency 
(IAEA)

	 The IAEA seeks to accelerate and en-
large the contribution of atomic energy to 
peace, health and prosperity throughout 
the world. The IAEA supports the Agency 
in establishing the necessary infrastruc-
ture in implementing the nuclear power 
programme in compliance with interna-
tional best practices.

viii.	 Office of the Auditor-General
	 The Office of the Auditor-General is man-

dated to ensure that accountability and 
transparency are adhered to at the three 
arms of government. It audits and reports 
on accounts of the Agency. 

ix.	 State Corporations Advisory Committee 
(SCAC)

	 The Committee powers are drawn from 
section 27 of the State Corporations Act 
chapter 446. The committee provides 
leadership in development and imple-
mentation of systems and procedures for 
ensuring efficient management of State 
Corporations
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(f)	 Entity Headquarters
	 P.O. Box 26374-00100
	 Kawi House Complex
	 South C - Red Cross Road, 
	 Nairobi, KENYA

(g)	 Entity Contacts
	 Telephone: (254) 20 5138300
	 E-mail:  info@nuclear.co.ke  
	 Website: www.nuclear.co.ke  

(h)	 Entity Bankers
i.	 Kenya Commercial Bank 
	 Moi Avenue Branch
	 P.O Box 48400-00100
	 Nairobi, Kenya    

ii.	 Co-operative Bank of Kenya
	 Mombasa Road Branch
	 P O Box 48231-00100
	 Nairobi, Kenya

iii.	 National Bank of Kenya
	 South C-Red Cross Branch
	 P.O Box 38645-00100
	 Nairobi, Kenya

(i)	 Independent Auditors
	 Auditor-General
	 Office of the Auditor General
	 Anniversary Towers, University Way 
	 P.O. Box 30084 GPO 00100 
	 Nairobi, Kenya

(j)	 Principal Legal Adviser
	 The Attorney General
	 State Law Office and Department 
	 of Justice
	 Harambee Avenue
	 P.O. Box 40112 City Square 00200
	 Nairobi, Kenya
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The Board of Directors 

Mr. Ezra Odondi Odhiambo
Chairman of the Board

Prof. Henry K. Rono, PhD
Board Member

Mr. Ezra Odondi Odhiambo holds a Bsc in Electrical En-
gineering and an executice MBA from Jomo Kenyatta 
Universty of Agriculture & Technology. He has expertise 
in strategic planning, business process re-engineering 
and improvement, change management , project man-
agement, telecommunications systems, human resource 
management and design development and implementa-
tion of application software.  He has held board positions 
and undertaken consultancy work such as sugar compa-
ny operations, financial services, postal servicesand tele-
comunication services among others. He has served in 
the board board of directors  at Chemilil Sugar Company, 
National Bureau of satistics, Netcon information System 
Ltd, Bomas ofKenya, Apex Construction Company Ltd 
and Information Standards Technology Association(Ken-
ya). He is a Member of the Computer Society Society of 
Kenya. 

Prof. Rono Henry holds a Phd in Industrial Sociology  and 
Ecoonomic Development, McGill University, Quebec, 
Canada, an M.A. in industrial Sociology, & information 
Science,  University of Aalgary, Alberta, Canada and a Di-
ploma in Social Development from the Kenya Institute of 
Administration, Kenya. He is a seasoned economic and 
industrial development expert  with  a sustained career in 
ICT, e-learning, management Information Systems  (MIS) 
in education and health sectors. He has supportedn con-
sultancy and the implementation of MIS for the ministry 
of Health in Kenya financed by USAID and also the  Na-
tional Hospital Insurance Fund (NHIF) also in Kenya. He 
was the principal consultant on needs assessment, de-
sign and implementation of the Management Informa-
tion System(MIS) for the Kenyatta UniversityTeaching and 
Referral Hospital(KUTRRH). He is part of the team sup-
porting implementationon MIS for three regional hospi-
tals in Kenya.
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The Board of Directors 

Ms. Elizabeth M. Lenjo
Board Member

Eng. Samson Nyika Maundu
Board Member

FA. Joseph Mwaura Kamau
Board Member

Ms Elizabeth M. Lenjo  holds a Master of Laws (LLM) from 
the University of Turin (Italy) in conjunction with world 
Intellectual Property Organization (WIPO) Academy, a 
Bachelor of Laws (LL.B) from the Catholic Universitu of 
Eastern Africa  (CUEA) and a Post Graduate Diploma 
from the Kenya School of Law (KSL). She secializes in In-
telectual Property Law, Entertainment Law, Media Law, 
Technoogy Law and Fashion Law.
Ms. Lenjo has a legal consulting firm , MYIP Lega studio 
which conducts legal advisory and capacity building 
workshops on Intellectual Property Law. She is a mem-
ber of the Law Society of Kenya LSK) where she she has 
served in the Intellectual Property and ICT Law Commit-
tee between 2018 to 2022 and International Trademark 
Association (INTA)

Eng. Samson Maundu holds a Bsc degree in Electrical 
& Electronics Engineering fromthe university of Nairobi.  
He is a partner and a Director at Rex Consultants Ltd in 
charge of Electrical , Electronics  and Telecomunications.
Eng. Maundu previously worked at the ministry of Pub-
lic Workswhere he rose from an assistant Engineer to a 
provincial Engineer where he was incharge of 19 districts.
Eng.Maundu is a Consultant Engineer and a member of 
the Institute of Engineers of  Kenya  (IEK) with wide expe-
rience in both low and high voltage engineering.

FA. Joseph Mwaura Kamau holds an MBA(Finance) from 
KAIST(South Korea) and also another Masters in MA Eco-
nomics Finance  & Banking(Financial Sector Policy) from 
Moi University. He holds a BA(Mathematics; Economics) 
from University of Nairobi. 
He is an economist in the National Treasury, department 
of Government Investment and Public Ennterprises. an 
alternative to the National Treasury Principal Secretary on 
the NuPEA Board. FA Kamau is a  Financial Analyst  and a 
member of Institute of Certified Investmentand Financial 
Analyst (ICIFA). He has vast Knowledge and understand-
ing in Finance , Economics and Investments. He has pre-
viously worked at Equity Bank (K) Ltd and standard Char-
tered Bank (K) Ltd.
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CPA Rose Akryo Baraza
Board Member
Alternate to the Principal Secretary, 
State Department for Energy

Mr. Edwin Munene Wanjohi
Board Member
Alternate to the Attorney General

Mr Arthur Koteng
Board Member

CPA Rose Akeyo Baraza holds an MBA (Finance), a Bache-
lor of Commerce Degree and a  Bachelor of LAws Degree 
from the Catholic University of Eastern Africa (CUEA). She 
is a Certified Public Accountant of Kenya and a member 
of the institute of Certified Public Accountants of Kenya 
(ICPAK).
She is currently the Deputy Accountant General at the 
State Department of Energy, Ministry of Energy and Pe-
troleum.

Mr. Edwin Munene holds a Bachelor of Laws (LLB) from 
the CAtholic University of Eastern Africa (CUEA) and a 
Post-Graduate Diploma from tha Kenya School of Law.
He is a result-oriented advocate with 10 years experience. 
Currently working  as a Senior State Counsel at the office 
of the Atttorney  General for the last 8 years. He possess-
es valuable skills such as Professionalism, good research 
and litigation.

Mr. Arthur Omondi Koteng holds a Masters Degree in Ra-
diation & Environmental Protection from the University 
of Surrey, United Kingdom and a Bachelor of Science De-
gree in Physics from the University of Nairobi.
He is the Director & Consultant Physicist at Canon Radio-
logical Services Limited that offers Radiation  Protection, 
Nuclear Safety  & Security services to several practices 
countrywide in the fields of medicine, Industry , Research 
and Teaching. He has vast experience in this nuclear field 
having worked with the national nuclear regulator for 33 
years where he was the Head of Nuclear Safeguards De-
partment and served as an Advisory Committee Mem-
ber of the International Nuclear and Radiological Event  
scale (INES) of the Internatiional Atomic Energy Agen-
cy(IAEA). He is a  trustee of the Africa Cancer Foundation 
and a member of the  Eastern Africa Associationfor Radi-
ation Protection(EAARP).

The Board of Directors 
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Mr. Paul M. Mwangi
Board Member
Alternate to the Principal 
Secretary, State Department 
for University Education and 
Research

Mr. Justus A. Wabuyabo
Chief Executive Officer

CS. Serah Esendi Okumu
Corporation Secretary

Mr. Paul Mwangi holds a MSc. (pure Mathematics) from 
Kenyatta University abd BEd (SC) from Egerton Univer-
sity. He is practicing education management and adm-
nistration in the division of Local University and Admin-
istrative  Services, Directorate of University Education , 
Ministry of Education. Mr. Paul Mwangi is an assistant Di-
rector of Education , State Department for University Ed-
ucation and research(SDUE&R).  Mr. Mwangi has served 
in the Councils/Boards of Egerton University , Murang’a 
University of Technology, Machakos University and South 
Eastern Kenya University as an Alternate to the Principal 
Secretary(SDUE&R).
He has previously worked as a Senior QualityAssurance 
nd StandardsOfficer, Ministry of Education

Mr. justus Ambutsi Wabuyabo holds a Master in Laws 
(LLM) from University of Nairobi and a  Bachelor of 
Laws(LLB) fro Moi University. 
He it the Director Legal and Regulatory Services and Cor-
poration Secretary, Certified Public Secretary of Kenya, a 
Commissioner of Oaths and Notary Public. He is a mem-
ber of Law Society of Kenya (LSK), the East Africa Law So-
ciety (EALS), the Pan African Lawyers  Union (PALU) and 
the Commonwealth Lawyers Association (CLA). He is also 
a member of the Institute of Certified Secretaries (ICS) 
and the Association of Professional Societies of East Afri-
ca (APSEA) previously , he served as the General<anager 
- Corporate and Legal Services  at the National Water and 
Harvesting Authority.

CS Serah is an advocate of the High Court, Commissioner 
for Oaths,  Notary Public and Certified Secretary with at-
least fourteen years work experience. She holds a Master 
of Laws (LLM)  Degree from  the University of Kwazulu Na-
tal, South Africa, Bachelor of Laws(LLB) degree from the  
Catholic University of East Africa. A post graduate Diplo-
ma from from the Kenya School of Law. She is a Practicing 
member of the Law Society of Kenya, and the institute 
of Certified Secretaries respectively. She has served as a 
Corporation Secretary  and Head of Legal Services at the 
Kenya Institute of Supplies Management and the Techni-
cal University of Mombasa with  over 10 years experience 
in the Public Sector. She was awarded First Runners Up in 
the Public Sector Lawyer of the  Year award 2022, under 
the Law Society of Kennya, Nairobi Branch.

The Board of Directors 
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The Management 

CS Justus A. Wabuyabo
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Basett Buyakah
Director publicity and Advocacy.

CS Serah Esendi Okumu
Director Legal & Regulatory & Corporation Secretary

Mr. Wabuyabo holds a Masters in Laws(LLM) and a Bachelor of 
Laws. He is a member of the Law Society of Kenya (LSK), the East 
Africa Law Society (EALS), the Pan African Lawyers Union(PALU) 
and the Commonwealth Lawyers Association (CLA). He is also 
a member of the Institute of Certified Secretaries (ICS) and the  
Association of Professional  Societies of East Africa(APSEA).

Mr. Basett holds a Bachelor’s degree at Kenyatta University and 
Postgraduate studies in Communication at the University of 
Nairobi. He is a journalist, media personality and communica-
tions professional. He is also an award-winning writer and pub-
lished author. He is a membetr of the Public Relations Society 
of Kenya.

CS Serah is an Advocate of the High Court, Commissioner for 
Oaths, Notary Public and Certified Secretary with at least four-
teen years work experience. She holds a Masters of Laws (LLM) 
degree from the University of Kwazulu Natal, South Africa, 
Bachelorof Laws (LLB) Degree from the Catholic University of 
Eastern Africa,  A post Graduate Diploma from the Kenya School 
of Law. She is a Practicing member of the Law Society of Kenya,  
and the Institute of Certified Secretaries respectively.
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Director, Strategy & Planning

Engineer Erick Ohaga
Director, Nuclear Energy Infrastructure Development

CPA Caren Oduor
Ag. Director Corporate Services

Dr.  Winfred  holds a Doctor of Philosophy in Business Admin-
istration and Maste’s Degree in Finance and a Bachelor of Eco-
nomics from the University of Nairobi. She is the Chair Person of 
Women in Nuclear (Kenya Chapter)

Eng. Ohaga holds an MSc in Nuclear Engineering (KINGS), Mas-
ters of Business Administration, BSc. in Electrical / Electronic En-
gineering and post graduate diploma in Project Planning and 
managemment. He is a registered Consulting Engineer with 
the Engineers Board of Kenya and a member of the Institute of 
Engineers of Kenya(IEK)

CPA Caren holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration 
and  a Bachelor of Commerce (Accounting option) degree both   
from the University of Nairobi. She is   a   Certified Public Ac-
countant of Kenya - CPA (K) and a member of Institute of Public 
Accountants of Kenya (ICPAK), and a member of association of 
Women Accountants of Kenya (AWAK)
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Manager, ICT

Mr. Ndungu holds Masters of Science in Finance from Kenyatta 
University and a Bachelor  of Science in Agriculture Economics 
from Egerton University. He is a Certified Public Accountant 
and a member of Institute of Certified Public Accountant Kenya 
(ICPAK) and also a Certified Information System Auditor (CISA) 
and a member of Information System Auditor Control Associa-
tion (ISACA)

Mr. Njuguna holds a Master of Arts in International Studies and 
a Bachelor of Arts degree, both from the University of Nairobi. 
Additionally, he possess a higher National Diploma in Human 
Resources Management from the College of Human Resource 
Management.
He is a Certified Human ResourceProfessional (CHRP-K) and 
practicing member of the Institute of Human Resource Man-
agement.

Mr. Siele holds a Master’s Degree in Information Systems and a 
Bachelor of Science Degree in Computer Science. He holds a Di-
ploma in project Management and Diploma in Database Man-
agement. He also hplds professional qualifications in Microsoft 
Certified Systems Engineer (MCSE), Cisco Certified Network As-
sociate (CCNA), PRINCE2, PMP and Cybersecurity.
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I am honoured to present the Nuclear Power and 
Energy Agency’s (NuPEA) Annual Report and Fi-
nancial Statements for the year ended 30th June 
2024, on behalf of the Board of Directors.
The Nuclear Power and Energy Agency (NuPEA) 
was established in 2019 under the Energy Act No.1 
of 2019 and succeeded the Kenya Nuclear Elec-
tricity Board (KNEB). NuPEA is mandated to fast-
track the development and implementation of 
the nuclear power programme in Kenya, carry out 
research and development, and capacity building 
in the energy and petroleum sectors. The Agency 
stands committed to its vision of providing sustain-
able energy solutions through; promoting nuclear 
electricity generation, coordinating research and 
development and capacity building in the energy 
and petroleum sector. 

Achievements
The Agency achieved significant milestones in the 
2023/24 financial year. Key amongst these achieve-
ments were site preparatory activities that includ-
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ed preparations for constructing a meteorological 
station at the Uyombo site and hosting an IAEA Site 
& External Events Design (SEED) Expert Mission on 
Research Reactor Siting. The Agency also conduct-
ed field visits with the Kilifi County Government 
Spatial Planner to confirm site boundaries as part 
of the land acquisition process. Additionally, the 
Environmental and Social Impact Assessment (E&-
SIA) report for the meteorological and seismic sta-
tions was developed and submitted to NEMA. The 
Agency in collaboration with the U.S. Department 
of State undertook a capacity building workshop 
on Foundational Infrastructure for Responsible Use 
of Small Modular Reactor Technology (F.I.R.S.T) on 
Small Modular Reactor (SMR) site assessment and 
stakeholder engagement with the host communi-
ty. The Agency also carried out an economic anal-
ysis and cost assessment of the necessary electric 
grid system upgrades required for the integration 
of a nuclear power plant at both the proposed and 
alternate sites.

The Agency subjected the Draft National Nucle-
ar Policy to public participation and stakeholder 
validation. In collaboration with the Kenya Nucle-
ar Regulatory Authority (KNRA) the Agency iden-
tified regulations on siting for the Nuclear Power 
Programme. A Sub-Lease between the Agency 
and KotDA for the land allocated at Konza City Me-
tropolis to allow for site characterization for a Re-
search Reactor is available pending execution. The 
Integrated Nuclear Infrastructure Review for the 
Research Reactor project (INIR-RR) mission was 
carried out. A Waste-to-energy(WtE) report and 
Intellectual Property Management Strategy (IPMS) 
were also developed.
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Strategic Plan 2023-2027
The Agency developed a four (4) year Strategic 
Plan 2023-2027 in line with the current Govern-
ment   development agenda which was launched 
on 18th March, 2024. The development of this Stra-
tegic Plan adopted a consultative approach that 
involved the Board, Management, staff and other 
stakeholders. The Plan communicates NuPEA’s vi-
sion, mission, and strategies put forth to achieve its 
mandate. The Plan has identified six Key Result Ar-
eas from six strategic issues that the Agency exists 
to address as follows; Nuclear Infrastructure Devel-
opment; Stakeholder Engagement and Advocacy; 
Energy Research and Innovation; Energy Capacity 
Development; Research Reactor Programme and 
Institutional Sustainability.

Stakeholders’ Engagement
During the financial year under review, the Agency 
made significant strides in stakeholder engage-
ment and education. Forty participants received 
training on stakeholder involvement, nuclear 
power communication, site assessment, and en-
gagement strategies. Additionally, the Agency’s 
education sponsorship program provided 102 
scholarships to needy secondary school students 
from potential host communities.

The Agency actively engaged with the public, par-
ticularly targeting residents of Kilifi County and the 
larger Coast region. A key activity included a cour-
tesy visit to the National Government Administra-
tion Office (NGAO) leadership of Kilifi County, led 
by the County Commissioner. This visit focused on 
discussions about progress and potential areas of 
collaboration regarding nuclear energy develop-
ment in Kenya.

In collaboration with fifty secondary schools in Kilifi 
County, the Agency disseminated factual informa-
tion on nuclear power development. Furthermore, 
a multi-stakeholder sensitization and training 
workshop was held at Pwani University, drawing 
participants from the Kilifi County Nuclear Ener-
gy Committee, community committee members 
from Uyombo and Matsangoni, journalists, and the 
regulatory body.

The Agency also sponsored and exhibited at pro-
fessional conferences, including those of ICPAK, 
LSK, IEK, and ICS, further broadening its engage-
ment efforts.

Strategic Partnerships
The Agency continued to place great premium 
on adopting mutually beneficial collaborative 
agreements and strong strategic partnerships to 
support effective implementation of its mandate. 
Notably, the Agency has Memorandum of Under-
standing with several institutions such as the Na-
tional Research Fund and Pwani University. This 
strategic cooperation in nuclear energy, capacity 
building, research and development, science and 
technology also has the potential to make a signif-
icant contribution to clean energy goals, agricul-
tural efforts, the availability of clean water, medical 
treatments among other benefits. The Board of 
the Agency had a consultative meeting with the 
National Research Fund on 10th November, 2023 
to discuss areas of interest and collaboration. The 
implementation of the NCMOU the Government of 
the United States of America and the Government 
of the Republic of Kenya concerning strategic civ-
il nuclear cooperation is being undertaken to ex-
plore areas of collaboration.

Other Strategic Partnerships being explored in-
clude Korea - NuPEA collaboration whereby an 
MOU with KAERI and KNHP on Technical Coop-
eration in Research and Development in Nuclear 
Energy and Small Modular Reactors respectively. 
The Agency also commenced the development of 
MOUs between NuPEA and Kilifi County, KMFRI, 
ODPP and CNECC. 

Challenges Faced
During the year 2023/2024, the Government im-
plemented budget austerity measures on the 
expenditure of Ministries, Departments and 
Agencies (MDAs) as a reflection of resource man-
agement that would add value and promote sus-
tainability. As a consequence, the Agency suffered 
a budget cut of Ksh.366M which negatively affect-
ed planned activities. 
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Another challenge has been the set-up of a me-
teorological station at the Uyombo Site which has 
faced significant resistance from the local commu-
nity hence halting the process of construction and 
thereby affecting achievement of this target by the 
Agency. 

Board Changes
There were no board changes during the period 
under review. The Board Evaluation was done in 
January 2024 in accordance with good governance 
practices. 

Future Outlook
As we move into the financial year 2024/25, our 
commitment persists in advancing the Nucle-

ar Power Programme, enhancing coordination 
frameworks for research and development, and 
bolstering capacity building within the energy and 
petroleum sectors. Finally, on behalf of the Board 
of Directors, I express my gratitude to the Ministry 
of Energy and Petroleum, development partners, 
the management, staff, and all our stakeholders for 
their continued support.

Mr. Ezra Odondi Odhiambo
CHAIRMAN
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INIR  mission. The follow up mission was conducted in June 2021. I am pleased to inform you 
that the INIR follow up mission pointed out that Kenya has made considerable progress in the 
development of the Nuclear Power Programme. Of note, Kenya has enacted a  national nuclear 
law and created a regulatory body with clear responsibilities for nuclear safety, security and 
safeguards. The Agency has also commenced assessing the nuclear legal framework and iden-
tifying other legislation that require review and developed a number of policies and strategies 
in key areas. The key areas include nuclear security and radioactive waste management with 
a view to enable the Government to make informed decisions on the introduction of nuclear 
power.
NuPEA finalized the preparation of a 5-year Strategic Plan for the period 2020 – 2025 in or-
der toincorporate the Agency’s expanded mandate in accordance with the Energy Act No.1 of 
2019. This Plan builds on and complements the 15-year roadmap for Kenya’s Nuclear Power 
Programme. Importantly, the Strategic Plan also takes cognizance of the national development 
agenda as contained in various policy documents including the Constitution of Kenya (2010), 
Vision 2030 and the Big Four Agenda
The Agency places great premium on both local and international stakeholder engagement 
through concerted effort towards adopting strategic and mutually beneficial collaborative agree-
ments. The Agency recognizes that strong strategic partnerships are pivotal in enhancing ef-
fective implementation of its mandate. These partnerships support NuPEA’s commitment to 
promoting and implementing Kenya’s Nuclear Power Programme, carrying out research and 
development and capacity building in the energy and petroleum sectors. 
In the year under review, the Agency steered through a myriad of challenges. The Covid-19 
pandemic and the attendant restrictions imposed by the Government on movement impeded 
some critical activities that included international visits and training programmes. In addition, 
our budgetary allocation was significantly reduced from Ksh 895.2M in the FY 2019/20 to Kshs 
813.5M in FY 2020/21. This reduction constrained the attainment of the Agency’s expanded 
mandate that presently adds on research and development, as well as capacity building for the 
energy and nuclear power sector.
As the Agency transitions into FY 2021/22, we remain committed to building on the gains made 
so far in developing the Nuclear Power Programme and enhancing the coordination frameworks 
for research and development, and capacity building for the energy and petroleum sectors.
On behalf of the Board of Directors, I express gratitude to the Ministry of Energy, development 
partners, the management, staff, and all our stakeholders for their continued support as we 
strive to achieve our mandate.

Mr Ezra Odondi Odhiambo 
Chairman, Nuclear Power and Energy Agency

xi.

On  behalf  of  the Board of Directors, I take pleasure in present-
ing the Nuclear Power and Energy Agency’s Annual Report 
and  Financial   statements   for  the year  ended  30th  June 2021.

In a bid to make  Kenya  ready  for  Nuclear   Power generation, the
International   Atomic  Energy  Agency(IAEA)  conducted   a  Phase1 
Integrated  Nuclear  Infrastructure  Review (INIR) mission in  Au-
gust 2015. The IAEA INIR   mission   is   designed   to   assist   Member                                                          
States in evaluating the status of their national infrastructure for the 
introduction   of a nuclear  power programme. In October 2018, Kenya 
requested  the IAEA  to conduct  a follow  up   INIR  mission  to review 
the   status   of  implementation  of   the recommendation  from the  2015

N UCLEAR PO WE R
& ENER GY  A GENC Y

NuPEA Annual Reports and Financial Statements For the year ended June 30, 2021
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Dear stakeholders,
I am pleased to present to you the Nuclear Pow-
er and Energy Agency’s (NuPEA) Annual Report 
and Financial Statements for the year ended 30th 
June 2024. During the year under review, NuPEA 
launched its Strategic Plan 2023-2027. The Plan 
outlines the activities to be implemented towards 
fulfilling its mandate in line with the Energy Act of 
2019. The revision of the Plan was in response to the 
directive issued by the National Treasury requiring 
all State Corporations and public entities to review 
and update their Strategic Plans to align with the 
broader national objectives, enhancing efficiency 
and effectiveness in the delivery of public services. 
For the next five years, this Plan will provide guid-
ance in promotion and development of nuclear 
power for electricity generation, conducting ener-
gy research and development as well as strength-
ening the capabilities of the energy and petroleum 
sectors.

Industry overview
Kenya recognizes energy as a critical factor in 
achieving its Vision 2030 development goals. The 
development of nuclear power in the country is 
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driven by the need for consistent and affordable 
electricity to support this vision. NuPEA aims to 
lead the charge in creating a reliable energy sector, 
focusing on safety, cost-effectiveness, and energy 
security. Additionally, nuclear power will be essen-
tial in advancing global climate change mitigation 
efforts and commitments, as highlighted in devel-
opment blueprints such as Africa Agenda 2063, 
Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) and the 
Africa Climate Summit, 2023 among others.
Revenue

In the Financial year 2023/2024, NuPEA received 
instrumental support from the Government of 
Kenya through the allocation and provision of fi-
nancial resources to run its operations. The Agency 
had an approved budget of Ksh.1, 376M compris-
ing Ksh. 581M for development and Ksh.795M for 
recurrent expenditures. However, due to govern-
ment budget reallocations during the period un-
der review, the Agency received a reduced budget 
of Ksh. 1,009 M from the exchequer with Ksh 214M 
allocated for development and Ksh. 795M for re-
current expenditures. This budgetary reduction 
necessitated expenditure rationalisation and real-
location, which negatively impacted the seamless 
operation of the Agency’s activities.

Performance overview
The Agency undertook activities in the financial 
year 2023/2024 under five Key Result Areas (KRAs) 
as outlined in the Strategic Plan 2023-2027, name-
ly: Nuclear Infrastructure Development, Stakehold-
er Engagement and Advocacy, Energy Research 
and Innovation, Energy Capacity Development, 
Research Reactor Programme, and Institutional 
Sustainability.

NuPEA developed and submitted an environ-
mental and social impact assessment to NEMA 

NUCLEAR POWER AND ENERGY AGENCY  ANNUAL REPORTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024



NUCLEAR POWER AND ENERGY AGENCY  ANNUAL REPORTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

XXV

for the meteorological and seismic stations to be 
constructed at Uyombo Girls Secondary School. 
An economic analysis/cost assessment was done 
on the existing electric grid system to inform up-
grades for NPP integration for the proposed and 
alternate sites with provided interconnection op-
tions.

The Agency developed the intellectual property 
management strategy for the purposes of coor-
dinating intellectual property management for 
research and development within the energy and 
petroleum sectors. The Integrated Action Plan (IAP) 
was also developed to address the gaps identified 
from the Integrated Nuclear Infrastructure Review 
for the Research Reactor project (INIR-RR) mission.
On capacity building, NuPEA developed a scoping 
report on the assessment of knowledge and skills 
gap in the energy and petroleum sector. Further, 
A human resource development gap assessment 
was undertaken to identify the competency gaps 
of the national tertiary training institutions.

The Agency developed a localization policy which 
highlighted challenges that limit local industry par-
ticipation in national projects, proposed thematic 
areas for policy interventions and recommended 
strategies to enable participation of the local in-
dustry in the Nuclear Power Programme.

Lastly, the Agency continued to undertake na-
tional stakeholder engagements to help enhance 
public awareness on the NuPEA’s mandate. The 
ultimate goal is to earn and sustain public support 
for the implementation of Kenya’s nuclear power 
programme. Notably, NuPEA strategically focused 
its stakeholder outreach efforts in the potential 
host County of Kilifi. The stakeholders emanated 
from the civil society, residents of Uyombo and 
Matsangoni communities, academia, Community 
Based Organizations (CBOs), Kilifi County Govern-
ment and National Government Administration 
Office (NGAO) of Kilifi. NuPEA shall endeavour to 
adhere to the principles of public participation as 
enshrined in the Constitution of Kenya 2010. 
Going forward, the Agency intends to oversee the 
installation and commissioning of the 100m mete-
orological tower in Kilifi County; procurement and 
installation of a digital seismic monitoring station 
in Kilifi County and activities for RR Site Characteri-
zation at Konza Technopolis towards Bidding. 
It is recommended that the Agency should under-

take enhanced stakeholder engagement at Ro-
ka-Uyombo village, Kilifi County in order to obtain 
the public understanding and support for the Nu-
PEA site monitoring equipment (100m meteoro-
logical tower, seismic station). This can be achieved 
through holding joint NuPEA, KNRA, NEMA and 
KMD public engagement meetings (Barazas) to in-
form, sensitise and seek locals’ support.

Strategic Partnerships
The Agency entered into Memoranda of Under-
standing (MOUs) with other parties to enhance 
cooperation and collaborations in the mandate re-
garding nuclear energy, training and research and 
development among other benefits. The parties 
include the Office of the Director of Public Prose-
cutions, National Research Fund and Pwani Uni-
versity. Regarding advancing stakeholder engage-
ment, the goal of the MoU with Pwani University 
is to strengthen partnership between the two en-
tities on areas of mutual interest and to enhance 
public understanding of nuclear energy issues 
among diverse stakeholder groups in Kilifi County.

Challenges
During the year under review, the Government 
put in place budget austerity measures that were 
implemented by MDAs towards financial manage-
ment in addition to reduced budget allocation to 
NuPEA vis-a-vis the initial allocation. These meas-
ures negatively affected execution and continua-
tion of part of the Agency’s planned activities in the 
year under review.

Future Outlook
Looking ahead, the Agency will focus on strength-
ening and safeguarding the progress achieved. We 
are dedicated to advancing our unique mandate 
and solidifying our position as a leading energy 
solution provider in Kenya and the wider region.
Finally, on behalf of NuPEA, I extend our apprecia-
tion to the Government of Kenya – Ministry of Ener-
gy and Petroleum, our strategic partners, industry 
players, management, staff, Board of Directors and 
all our valued stakeholders for their ongoing sup-
port over the years. We anticipate your continued 
backing in the upcoming financial year 2024/2025.

CS Justus Wabuyabo, LLM (UoN)
Chief Executive Officer
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The responsibility of governing the Agency lies 
with the Board of Directors. NuPEA has adopt-
ed high standards and applies strict rules of con-
duct based on the best corporate practices. Board 
members act in the best interest of the Agency 
and uphold their fiduciary responsibilities and duty 
of care. This involves not disclosing confidential in-
formation, avoiding real and perceived conflicts of 
interest and favouring the interests of the Agency 
over other interests.

Guiding Principles 
In line with Section 3 of the Leadership and Integ-
rity Act (Act No. 19 of 2012 of the Laws of Kenya), 
Board members respect the values, principles and 
the requirements of the Constitution, including:

i.	 The national values and principles provid-
ed for under Article 10 of the Constitution;

ii.	 The rights and fundamental freedoms 
provided for under Chapter Four of the 
Constitution;

iii.	 The responsibilities of leadership provided 
for under Article 73 of the Constitution;

iv.	 The principles governing the conduct of 
State officers provided for under Article 75 
of the Constitution;

v.	 The educational, ethical and moral re-
quirements in accordance with Article 99 
(1) (b) and 193 (1) (b) of the Constitution; and

vi.	 The values and principles of Public Service 
as provided for under Article 232 of the 
Constitution.

8
Corporate Governance Statement 

Board members also uphold the tenets of good 
governance as guided by the Code of Governance 
for State Corporations (Mwongozo/Code of Gov-
ernance), the Board Charter and the Public Of-
ficers and Ethics Act No.4 of 2003.

Board Charter
The Board Charter defines the roles and responsi-
bilities of the Board of NuPEA as well as functions 
and structures in a way that supports the members 
in carrying out their strategic oversight function. It 
provides the Board members with an opportuni-
ty to think creatively and critically about how their 
strategic and operational plans align with NuPEA’s 
strategic direction and expectations, with respect 
to governance. The Charter also sets out the pow-
ers of various Board Committees, the separation 
of roles between the Board and management, as 
well as the policies and practices of the Board with 
respect to corporate governance matters.

The Board Charter and Committee Charters  were 
adopted by NuPEA in August 2022, in accordance 
with the Mwongozo Code of Governance for State 
Corporations and is complementary to the require-
ments regarding the Board contained in applica-
ble Kenyan laws and regulations. 
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Board Membership 
In line with the guidelines of the Mwongozo Code 
of Governance for State Corporations, the Board 
comprises nine (9) members. Of these, five (5) are 
Independent Directors including the Chairman, 
while four (4) are Non-Independent Directors rep-
resenting the National Treasury, the Ministry of En-
ergy and Petroleum, Ministry of Education, and the 
Office of the Attorney General. The Chief Executive 
Officer is an ex-officio member.  The constitution 
of the Board takes into consideration diversity in 
gender, age, ethnicity and culture. 

Appointment and removal of Board Members
Board members are appointed in accordance with 
the requirements of the Mwongozo Code of Gov-
ernance for State Corporations. The Code of Gov-
ernance requires all Chairpersons of State Corpo-
rations to be appointed by the President.  Board 
members are formally appointed by the Cabinet 
Secretary of the parent Ministry (Ministry of Energy 
& Petroleum) through a Gazette Notice and there-
after an appointment letter.

In accordance with the Code of Governance, the 
Board may recommend the removal of a member 
based on non-performance, non-attendance of 
meetings, unethical conduct or as set out in any 
constitutive documents or applicable law.  Any re-
moval of a Board member shall be through formal 
revocation.

Roles and functions of the Board 
In furtherance of its responsibilities, the Board is 
required to:

a)	 Determine the organisation’s mission, vi-
sion, purpose and core values;

b)	 Review, evaluate and approve, on a regu-
lar basis, long-term plans for the organisa-
tion;

c)	 Review, evaluate and approve the organi-
sation’s budget and financial forecasts;

d)	 Review, evaluate and approve major re-
source allocations and capital invest-
ments;

e)	 Ensure that the procurement process is 
cost-effective and delivers value for mon-
ey;

f)	 Review and approve the operating and fi-
nancial results of the organisation;

g)	 Ensure effective, accurate, timely and 
transparent disclosure of pertinent infor-

mation on the organisation’s operations 
and performance;

h)	 Ensure that effective processes and sys-
tems of risk management and internal 
controls are in place;

i)	 Review, evaluate and approve the overall 
organisational structure, the assignment 
of senior management responsibilities 
and plans for senior management devel-
opment and succession;

j)	 Review, evaluate and approve the remu-
neration structure of the organisation;

k)	 Adopt, implement and monitor compli-
ance with the organisation’s Code of Con-
duct and Ethics;

l)	 Review on a quarterly basis the attain-
ment of targets and objectives set out in 
the agreed performance measurement 
framework with the Government of Kenya;

m)	 Review periodically the organisation’s 
strategic objectives and policies relating 
to sustainability and social responsibility/
investment;

n)	 Protect the rights of shareholders and op-
timise shareholder value;

o)	 Enhance the organisation’s public image 
and ensure engagement with stakehold-
ers through effective communication;

p)	 Monitor compliance with the Constitution, 
all applicable laws, regulations and stand-
ards; and

q)	 Review, monitor and ensure that the or-
ganisation is effectively and consistently 
delivering on its mandate.

Board Committees and Membership
The State Corporations Act, Cap 446 of the Laws 
of Kenya, allows the Boards of State Corporations 
to establish committees in order to effectively 
discharge their mandates.  The Mwongozo Code 
of Governance for State Corporations allows the 
Board to establish not more than four (4) commit-
tees of the Board, one of which must be an Audit 
Committee.  The Board has established four stand-
ing committees as follows:

Human Resource and General Purpose Com-
mittee
The Board of Directors has established the Human 
Resource and General Purpose Committee that 
consists of four (4) members to review, and as ap-
propriate, act on behalf of the Board, or make rec-
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ommendations to the Board concerning Human 
Resource and Administration, Legal, and Publicity 
policies and procedures. The Human Resource and 
General Purpose Committee is comprised of the 
following members:

1.	 Mr. Arthur Koteng - Chairperson
2.	 Eng. Samson Maundu
3.	 Ms. Rose Baraza
4.	 Mr. Paul Mwangi

Technical and Research Committee
The Board of Directors has established the Tech-
nical and Research Committee to review, and as 
appropriate, act on behalf of the Board, or make 
recommendations to the Board concerning infra-
structure issues for the successful implementation 
of a Nuclear Power Programme in Kenya.
The Technical and Research Committee is com-
prised of the following members:

1.	 Dr. Henry Rono-Chairperson
2.	 Ms. Elizabeth Lenjo
3.	 Mr. Arthur Koteng
4.	 Mr. Edwin Munene

Finance, Strategy and Planning Committee
The Board of Directors has established the Finance, 
Strategy and Planning Committee to review, and 
as appropriate, act on behalf of the Board, or make 
recommendations to the Board concerning Fi-
nance, ICT, Strategy & Planning issues and Procure-
ment policies and procedures.
The Finance, Strategy and Planning Committee is 
comprised of the following members:

1.	 Ms. Elizabeth Lenjo- Chairperson
2.	 Mr. Edwin Munene
3.	 Mr. Joseph Kamau
4.	 Ms. Rose Baraza

Board Audit Committee
The Audit Committee is a key component of the 
governance process.  The Committee evaluated 
the integrity of the Agency’s financial information, 
its system of internal controls and the legal and 
ethical conduct of management and employees. 
Its mandate is to independently review financial 
statements to ensure integrity and transparency 
of financial reporting, drive the assessment of the 
performance of internal audit, examine internal 
and external audit reports and recommendations, 

evaluate adequacy of management procedures in 
relation to risk management and review effective-
ness of compliance with legislative and regulatory 
requirements.
The Audit Committee is comprised of the following 
members:

1.	 Eng. Samson Maundu - Chairperson
2.	 Dr. Henry Rono
3.	 Mr. Joseph Kamau
4.	 Mr. Paul Mwangi

The Board provides Terms of Reference for each 
committee; reviews the mandate of the Commit-
tees periodically; determines the frequency of 
committee meetings; appoints the Chairperson of 
each Committee; and annually reviews the effec-
tiveness and performance of its Committees.  The 
Board may establish an ad-hoc Committee to deal 
with emerging issues that do not fall under the do-
main of regular Board Committees.

Board Calendar and meetings
The Board’s Calendar contains a schedule of meet-
ings of the Board and its committees for the year. 
The agenda for each Board meeting is prepared 
and circulated to members at least ten (7) days in 
advance
During the year under review, the Board held a to-
tal 13 full Board meetings, 7 of them being special 
meetings and 20 Committee meetings to consid-
er key issues relating to strategy, performance and 
sustainability of the Agency
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Board Capacity Development  
The Board of Directors is committed to empower 
its members with a view to enabling them to un-
derstand their responsibilities as directors, gener-
al principles of corporate governance and Board 
practices. Continuous development of the capac-
ity of the board is important and the Agency en-
sured this by facilitating the members to attend 
the Board Capacity Building offered by Kenya In-
stitute of Public Policy Research and Analysis (KIP-
PRA) between 24th to 28th July, 2023.

On 23rd to 27th October, 2023, the Board Members 
were taken through the elements of the proposed 
Strategic Plan 2023-2027 period. This involved the 
objectives of the Agency, the activities undertaken 
in the previous period, the KRAs to be covered in 
the 5-year period and the implementation plan.
Members of the Board were taken through the 
Board induction workshop organised by SCAC and 
ICS between 12th to 14th July, 2023.The members 
of the Board Audit Committee attended a Board 
Audit and Risk Committees workshop in Naivasha 
and another one in Mombasa trained by the Pub-
lic Sector Accounting Standards Board of Kenya in 
November 2023 while the Human Resource and 
General Purpose Committee members attended 
a workshop in Malindi in March 2024 where train-
ing was conducted by the Institute of Human Re-
source Management of Kenya.

Board Evaluation
A board performance evaluation was undertaken 
as espoused in the Code of Governance of State 
Corporations (Mwongozo) Para.1.12 to determine its 

performance in the FY 2022/2023 on the 26th and 
29th of January, 2024.

Declaration of Conflict of Interest
Board members are required to avoid conflict of 
interest and deal at arms-length in any matter 
that relates to the Agency. A board member who 
identifies an area of conflict discloses any actual or 
potential conflict of interest, provides all relevant 
information and abstains from decision making. 
Board members sign the conflict of interest regis-
ter before any meeting.

Governance audit
The Board is expected to ensure that a govern-
ance audit of the Agency is undertaken in collab-
oration with the State Corporation Advisory Com-
mittee (SCAC) on an annual basis in line with the 
Mwongozo Code of Governance for State Corpo-
rations. The purpose of the audit is to ensure that 
the Agency conforms to the highest standards of 
governance practice. In the year under review, the 
recommendations of the Legal Compliance & Gov-
ernance Audit undertaken in the FY 2022/23 was 
tabled to the Management Committee awaiting 
implementation.

Board remuneration
Board members are remunerated for their ser-
vices in accordance with guidance from the State 
Corporation Advisory Committee (SCAC) through 
circulars issued from time to time, as well as the 
prevailing relevant legislative provisions and/or 
guidance from the relevant authorities.The regu-
lar allowances for Board Chairpersons and Board 
members are as follows:

No. Allowance Chairperson Board member

1.  Honoraria Ksh.80,000/- per month N/A

2.  Sitting Ksh.20,000/-per sitting Ksh.20,000/- per sitting

3. Transport Determined by prevailing Government 
guidelines; currently National Treasury 
Circular of 2015. Paid at the current 
prevailing Automobile Association of 
Kenya (AA) rates

Determined by prevailing 
Government guidelines; currently 
National Treasury Circular of 2015. Paid 
at the current prevailing Automobile 
Association of Kenya (AA) rates

4.  Personal Accident 
Cover  (“Not Life”)

Procured competitively. Procured competitively.

5.   Medical Expenses Inpatient Ksh.2 Million per annum; 
Outpatient Ksh. 100,000/- per annum and 
Last expense  (self) Ksh.100,000/

Inpatient Ksh.2 Million per annum; 
Outpatient Ksh. 100,000/- per annum 
and Last expense  (self) Ksh.100,000/

Table 8: Regular allowances for Board Chairpersons and Board Members
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Operational Performance

During the Financial year 2023/2024, the Agency 
planned to implement several programs and pro-
jects aimed at achieving its overall core mandate 
as per the Energy Act 2019. The programs were in 
line with the Agency’s Strategic plan, Governments 
Strategic objectives and the Vision 2030 agenda. 
The activities and the performance achievement 
are discussed here below;

A.	 Policy, Legal and Regulatory 
Framework for the Nuclear Power 
Programme development

Developing the policy, legal and regulatory frame-
work for the Nuclear Power Programme involves 
addressing key areas. The National Nuclear Policy 
is to address gaps in the peaceful use of nuclear 
science and technology, while the Nuclear Regu-
latory body established by the Nuclear Regulato-
ry Act, 2019, fills the legal, institutional, and regu-
latory gaps for the safe use of nuclear energy. To 
support the nuclear power programme, regula-
tions and guides will be developed. Harmonizing 
national laws with the Nuclear Regulatory Act 
aims to streamline regulation, reduce duplicity, 
and address compliance challenges. Accession to 
key international nuclear treaties, including four 
IAEA-adopted Nuclear Safety Conventions and 
two liability conventions, is underway to strength-
en the legal framework. Additionally, legal services 
include representing the Agency in legal matters 
and drafting MOUs and agreements with partners.
 
During the financial year under review, the legal 
and regulatory services directorate undertook var-

9
Management Discussion and Analysis

NuPEA’S Operational and Financial Performance

ious activities towards the realisation of the above 
identified key areas for the NPP as discussed here-
in:

The Agency subjected the Draft National Nuclear 
Policy to public participation by publishing an ad-
vert inviting memoranda as well as stakeholder 
validation activities within select counties at the 
Rift Valley, Nyanza, Eastern, Central and Coastal 
provinces through consultants who reviewed the 
2022 Draft, and incorporated comments from 
public participation in preparation for National Val-
idation of the Policy in FY 2024/25. 

The Agency collaborated with the KNRA on devel-
opment of regulations to operationalize the Nucle-
ar Regulatory Act, 2019 and implementation of the 
Nuclear Power Programme.  A joint workshop was 
held in Mombasa to strategize priority regulations 
and this resulted in the proposal of 22 regulations 
and guides required as well as the content need-
ed for the regulations. Two skeleton regulations on 
site characterisation activities and licensing were 
provided to the Agency by the regulator. The two 
regulations require further review to finalise them.
The Agency advanced the review of national laws 
relevant to the Nuclear Regulatory Act, 2019, and 
the Nuclear Power Programme by refining the 
Terms of Reference needed to procure a legisla-
tive expert. This expert will assess the legislative 
requirements for implementing the nuclear power 
programme, draft an Amendment Bill to facilitate 
necessary legal changes, and produce a compre-
hensive report on the review of existing laws.

NUCLEAR POWER AND ENERGY AGENCY  ANNUAL REPORTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
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The Agency continued its coordination efforts for 
acceding to nuclear treaties and conventions by in-
corporating feedback from the Ministry of Energy 
and Petroleum on the submitted Cabinet Memo-
randum concerning the four nuclear safety con-
ventions, adopted under the auspices of the IAEA, 
identified for ratification/accession. To ensure pub-
lic participation in the ratification process, a news-
paper advertisement was published, inviting writ-
ten memoranda from the public on these treaties.
The Agency handled several legal proceedings 
against it during this FY 2023/24 which required 
legal representation externally and internally ie. 
court cause ELCEPET 3 of 2023; PPARB No. 33 & 
34 of 2024 and PPARB No. 49 of 2024. The legal 
proceeding being handled by external lawyers is 
currently in progress whereas the PPARB matters 
were handled and concluded by the Agency law-
yers.

The Agency undertook preparation and execution 
of MOUs with various agencies such as the Nation-
al Research Fund and Pwani University on collabo-
ration in research and development in the nuclear 
science and technology thematic area and other 
areas of interest. MOUs with Technical University 
of Mombasa, County Government of Kwale, ODPP, 
KYGN, Kilifi and KAERI are in the process of approv-
al.

B.	 Strategic Environmental and 
Assessment for Kenya’s Nuclear Power 
Programme (SEA)

Conducting a Strategic Environmental and Assess-
ment (SEA) is a legal requirement for all large pro-
jects in order to assess the strategic and environ-
mental viability of a programme.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Environmental 
Management and Co-ordination Act, 1999 (Rev 
2015) and the Agency’s 15-year road map, the Agen-
cy is undertaking a Strategic Environmental and 
Assessment of Kenya's Nuclear Power Programme 
with a view to assist Kenya to systematically and 
comprehensively address the unique issues of nu-
clear power programme to support effective and 
efficient decision-making for sustainable develop-
ment of the country's Nuclear Power Programme.
This project is aimed at achieving broad public ac-
ceptance of the Nuclear Power Project in line with 
the national values and principles of governance 
contained in the Constitution of Kenya and addi-

tionally constitutes the basis for the subsequent 
commencement of an Environmental Impact As-
sessment (EIA) Study for the nuclear power plant 
sites.

During the financial year under review, the Agency 
continued with the Strategic Environmental and 
Assessment (SEA) process incorporating the find-
ings from the National Validation Workshop held 
in FY2022/23 in Nairobi for the SESA Report for 
Kenya’s Nuclear Power Programme. The Agency is 
reviewing the report based on recommendations 
from NEMA for various aspects of the programme.

C.	 Site and Supporting Facilities 
Identified

One of NuPEA's functions is to identify suitable 
sites for constructing a nuclear power plant (NPP), 
which involves selecting the best national site op-
tions based on criteria such as regulatory require-
ments and quality assurance. This process, includ-
ing regional screening, site surveys, and ranking, 
was successfully completed.

Having complete site selection, the next phase in-
volves site assessment, which justifies the chosen 
sites through detailed investigations and charac-
terizations. These assessments inform the site-re-
lated design basis, which will be included in the bid 
invitation specifications for the NPP.

With the establishment of the Mombasa office for 
preparatory siting activities and the Land Access 
Committee's confirmation that the preferred land 
is government-owned with an existing school, an 
agreement was reached with Uyombo Girls High 
School Management to acquire access. Additional-
ly, land was allocated at Konza City for site charac-
terization activities related to a Research Reactor.

The Agency signed a contract for the set-up of a 
meteorological station at the Uyombo Site as part 
of the preparatory characterization activities in the 
FY2022-23. However, the set-up of a meteorologi-
cal station at the Uyombo Site stalled due to lack of 
social licence for the project.

During the Financial Year under review, the Agen-
cy inspected the 100m meteorological tower com-
ponents, undertook field visits to two (2) national 
seismic monitoring stations in Kenya for data col-
lection, which led to the finalisation of the Speci-
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fications and Expression of Interest (EOI) for the 
NuPEA digital seismic monitoring station in Kilifi 
County. 

In addition, the Agency conducted an IAEA Site & 
External Events Design (SEED) Expert Mission on 
the Research Reactor Siting, (22-26 January 2024); 
Carried out a field visit with the Kilifi County Gov-
ernment Spatial Planner (01-02 Feb 2024 at the 
Preferred NPP Site) to confirm its boundaries as 
part of preparations for Land Acquisition; and con-
ducted a U.S Department of State F.I.R.S.T capaci-
ty building Workshop on SMR Site Assessment & 
in Stakeholder Engagement (26-28 March 2024 in 
Kilifi).

Under the NuPEA roadmap, Bid Invitation Speci-
fication (BIS) development is supposed to have 
been completed by 2025. For this to be realised the 
various infrastructure teams require to have com-
pleted collection of all prerequisite information 
presented in the BIS. In this effort all teams under-
take activities, studies, training, simulations with a 
direct linkage to bidding.

The Agency carried out an economic analysis/ cost 
Assessment on necessary Electric grid system up-
grades for NPP integration for the proposed and 
alternate sites. This included Data collection on the 
220kV and 132 kV coastal region transmission ring 
to check on grid development status and inform 
on interconnection options.

In the FY 2023/24, the Agency implemented en-
vironmental and social impact assessment activ-
ities with drafting a scoping report for a contract 
identifying impacts and mitigation measures of 
the nuclear power plant project in Kilifi County 
with related expenses during the course of project 
implementation. The contract has mechanisms in 
place on how to resolve future possible licence and 
permit issues and conditions to enable continuous 
project implementation. In collaboration with of-
ficers from KMFRI, the team drafted the contract 
document, scope of details on the study area and 
marine sensitivity data to be collected and cost es-
timates for the data collection for marine environ-
mental analysis. The team also developed an IAEA 
Coordinated Research Project report detailing the 
modelling methodology for nuclear renewable 
integration using the Low Emission Analysis Plat-
form tool.  

D.	 Energy Research and Development

Sustainable and effective R&D in the energy and 
petroleum sectors will significantly contribute to 
increased productivity and efficiency. There has 
been considerable progress made in the sectors’ 
R&D however, this has mainly been undertaken in 
a segregated manner by the various institutions. 

In an effort to address the identified challenges, 
the Agency is implementing the coordination for 
R&D in the energy and petroleum sectors. 

Waste-to-energy (WtE) report was developed in 
FY 23/24 for the Energy Sector. Waste-to-energy 
(WtE) refers to a variety of treatment technologies 
that convert waste to electricity, heat, fuel, or other 
usable materials, as well as a range of residues in-
cluding fly ash, sludge, slag, boiler ash, wastewater 
and emissions, including greenhouse gases.With 
these enormous amounts of waste produced every 
day, the GoK has been under immense pressure to 
find a lasting solution considering such waste has 
huge implications to human health, animals,  the 
lands, oceans and the environment in general. Pol-
icy makers have searched for answers from more 
developed nations and Waste to Energy (WtE) 
has stood out as the solution. In light of these the 
Agency has undertaken the role of developing a 
report on Waste to Energy (WtE) conversion tech-
nologies in Kenya.

An Intellectual Property Management Strategy 
(IPMS) report was developed to assist organisa-
tions involved in energy research to protect their 
inventions, establish brand recognition through 
trademarks, prevent unauthorised use of their 
creative works, or use their IP to generate revenue 
through licensing agreements. Clarity about goals 
guides decision-making throughout the IP life-
cycle. In order to coordinate intellectual property 
management within the energy sector for research 
and development, the Agency has developed the 
intellectual property management strategy for en-
ergy research and development for the sector in 
this financial year.
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E.	 Capacity Building in the Energy 
Sectors

The Agency developed a scoping report on the as-
sessment of knowledge and skills gap in the ener-
gy and petroleum sector. The Agency collaborated 
with key players in the energy sector resulting in 
the establishment of a coordination mechanism 
for an effective and sustainable implementation 
of a capacity building project titled “The Project for 
Capacity Development of Power Transmission Sys-
tems in the Republic of Kenya”. 

The Agency also collaborated with the College of 
Engineering and Technology (COETEC), JKUAT in 
the Sustainable Research & Innovation Conference 
2023. The Agency also had an Engagement with 
SETA and IESR on implementation of collaborative 
HRCB programmes in the sector Sustainable Re-
search & Innovation Conference 2023.

F.	 Nuclear Research & Development

Nuclear energy technologies have wide applica-
tions that have been shown to enhance economic 
development and improve quality of life. Research 
and development activities are required to sus-
tain knowledge and competence within organ-
isations that support or regulate/control nuclear 
power plant activities. Nuclear R&D is also a critical 
element in the development of different sectors 
of the economy in the country. The applications 
of nuclear technology/techniques in agriculture, 
medicine, industry, management of water resourc-
es are some of the processes that would contribute 
to national development.

In the implementation of nuclear R&D, the Agen-
cy is implementing the Kenya Nuclear Research 
Reactor (KNRR) project which has a diverse range 
of applications in education and training, research, 
health, agriculture and industry. In FY 2022/24 The 
Agency conducted a Feasibility Study (FS) for the 
KNRR project that captured the results of all pre-
liminary studies for establishment of a research re-
actor including: infrastructure assessment, project 
justification, strategic plan, economic cost benefit 
analysis, Human Resource Development Plan and 
site investigation report.

The Agency developed a draft stakeholder en-
gagement and communication strategy for a re-
search reactor project through a workshop in June 
2024.

The IAEA in collaboration with the Agency held 
an INIR-RR review mission designed to assist Ken-
ya determine the status of its national nuclear in-
frastructure and to identify further development 
needs to support a new research reactor project. 
The Agency developed the Integrated Action Plan 
(IAP) to address the gaps identified from the Inte-
grated Nuclear Infrastructure Review for the Re-
search Reactor project (INIR-RR) mission.

The Agency also reviewed a draft Preliminary Bid 
Invitation Specification for Kenya Nuclear Research 
Reactor Project Assessment of National Nuclear 
Infrastructure for the Research Reactor Project in 
Kenya. 

Other activities undertaken within this FY 
2023/2024 included the development of an outline 
of the stakeholder engagement and communica-
tion strategy for the RR project and a report on site 
selection for research reactor in Kenya. The Agency 
also reviewed the draft Preliminary Bid Invitation 
Specification for Kenya Nuclear Research Reactor 
Project Assessment of National Nuclear Infrastruc-
ture for the Research Reactor Project in Kenya. A 
report on the Reactor Project Assessment of Na-
tional Nuclear Infrastructure for the Research Re-
actor Project in Kenya. The Agency embarked on 
the development of a report on the requirements 
for the National Energy Laboratories with the out-
lining of its Terms of Reference.

G.	 Industrial Involvement

The Agency developed a localization policy. In the 
policy, NuPEA proposed recommendations for 
consideration in the localization policy and strate-
gy for the nuclear power programme. It highlight-
ed challenges that limit local industry participation 
in national projects, proposed thematic areas for 
policy interventions in the localization policy and 
recommended strategies to enable participation 
of the local industry in the Nuclear Power Pro-
gramme. 

In addressing the challenges highlighted in this FY 
2023/24 the Agency undertook training of three (3) 
local supply chain players on related nuclear pow-
er programme opportunities and/or requirements 
by conducting various industrial visits. The target 
supplier categories were in: Construction; Trans-
port and logistics; and Electrical equipment sup-
ply. The industrial involvement team also engaged 
the engineering fraternity in a recently concluded 
engineers’ convention.
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The Agency also undertook an industrial involve-
ment scientific visit to Japan, aimed at creating an 
understanding of the approaches (best practices 
and lessons learned) adopted to create optimal lo-
cal industrial capacity to support NPP projects.
The Agency developed the risk assessment for the 
local supply base report through the risk register 
update, and further developing the risk assess-
ment based on the risk register outcomes, the re-
port was completed by subjecting the draft to peer 
review and expert judgement.

H.	 Human Resources Strategy 
Development

Kenya has embarked on its nuclear power pro-
gramme and has recognized the need to conduct 
a workforce assessment of the present and future 
competency required to build the necessary level 
of human capacity to construct, operate, maintain, 
decommission and regulate nuclear power plants. 
The Agency developed Terms of Reference for the 
proposed HRD IAEA Expert Mission for the review 
of the Gap Assessment and HRD Strategy devel-
opment. The Terms of Reference were submitted 
to the NLO office to facilitate expediting the review 
mission undertaken as a   workshop with IAEA Ex-
pert where the experts advised on their findings 
and recommendations on the NPHR report, Map-
ping Report Gap assessment report and draft HRD 
strategy.

The Agency reviewed available case studies of 
HRD strategies from desktop research from Japan 
and India. Following the IAEA HRD Expert review 
workshop on the feedback/recommendations that 
were given on the strategy that were used to re-
view the HRD strategy

A total of 56 students have been enrolled in foreign 
universities (Harbin University in China, Seoul Na-
tional University (SNU) and KEPCO International 
Nuclear Graduate School (KINGS) both in South Ko-
rea) to study masters in Nuclear Engineering and 
Science. Out of these, 46 have already graduated 
and the rest are due to graduate by 2023. A total 
of 58 students have been sponsored to undertake 
MSc Nuclear Science at the Institute of Nuclear Sci-
ence and Technology, University of Nairobi.

A total of 134 trainings were undertaken  in FY 
2023/24 in various workshops both domestically 
and internationally on various Nuclear Science and 

Technology domains, including: Nuclear Power 
Infrastructure Development; Reactor Technology 
Assessment for SMRs; International and National 
Legal Frameworks for SMRs; Emergency Planning 
and Response; Technology Development and Ap-
plications for SMRs; Generic User Requirements 
and Criteria for SMRs; Energy Planning and Use 
of the IAEA Tools to Model Electricity Systems for 
SMRs; among others.

I.	 Public Communication and 
Stakeholder Management

Stakeholder engagement aimed at increasing 
public awareness and understanding of Kenya’s 
Nuclear Power Program, educating stakeholders 
on the production of electricity using nuclear pow-
er, informing the public on all aspects on the use of 
nuclear technology which is safe and secure, mak-
ing them aware of the economic benefits that may 
occur from putting up the plant in the country. 
During the financial year under review, the Agency 
enhanced information sharing and stakeholders' 
satisfaction through implementation of the public 
communication and stakeholders' engagement 
strategy by undertaking the following activities:

The Agency undertook nine (9) stakeholder en-
gagements with three (3)  professional bodies and 
other organisations in Kenya by way of sponsor-
ships and exhibitions aimed to sensitise partici-
pants on nuclear energy development and also 
served to enhance NuPEA’s brand image and visi-
bility: Devolution Conference, Africa Climate Sum-
mit Week, Nairobi International Trade Fair (NITF), 
Mombasa International Trade Fair (MITF), 27th In-
stitute of Certified Secretaries (ICS) Annual Inter-
national Conference,  Law Society of Kenya (LSK) 
Annual Conference, Coastal People Forum (CPF), 
41st Institute of Certified Public Accountants of 
Kenya (ICPAK), 2nd HomaBay International Invest-
ment Conference (HOBIIC) and 30th International 
Convention of the Institution of Engineers of Kenya 
(IEK).

The Agency undertook stakeholder outreach fo-
rums on nuclear energy development to enhance 
understanding of Kenya’s nuclear power pro-
gramme among residents of Kilifi County by the 
following:

a)	 Held public barazas with residents of Ken-
ya’s nuclear power plant host communi-
ties of Matsangoni location and Uyombo 
Village in Kilifi County. 
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b)	 Engaged the public particularly target-
ing residents of the local host community 
of Kilifi County and the larger Coast re-
gion through a radio talk show hosted on 
Msenangu FM. 

c)	 Engaged with the National Government 
Administration Office (NGAO) leadership 
of Kilifi County led by the County Commis-
sioner during a courtesy visit to the office 
by NuPEA delegation led by the CEO. 

d)	 Undertook stakeholder engagement with 
community groups in Uyombo and the 
larger Matsangoni at Pwani University. The 
forum aimed to enhance knowledge and 
understanding of nuclear energy issues 
among the various groups and to assess 
their concerns as regards development of 
the nuclear power programme for Kenya. 

e)	 In partnership with the International 
Atomic Energy Agency (IAEA), NuPEA 
held a Stakeholder Involvement and Nu-
clear power communication workshop in 
Kilifi County. 

f)	 NuPEA in collaboration with a U.S. based 
partner in the nuclear industry, known as 
the (F.I.R.S.T) program, held a stakeholder 
workshop on the siting of nuclear power 
plants and stakeholder engagement in 
nuclear energy in Kilifi County.

g)	 Implemented the Agency’s education 
sponsorship program by awarding 102 
needy secondary school students from 
the potential host communities of Uy-
ombo and the larger Matsangoni (Kilifi 
County). 

Financial performance

NuPEA is a state-owned agency under the Minis-
try of Energy and is funded through Exchequer al-
locations. The exchequer is disbursed through the 
Ministry of Energy on a monthly basis. Further the 
Agency also has externally mobilised funds from 
International Atomic Energy Agency (IAEA) to sup-
port Agency Capacity Building activities.

Budget 

For the Financial year 2023/2024 the Agency 
had an approved budget of Ksh. 1,376,000,000 
comprising Ksh. 581,000,000 development 
and Ksh. 795,000,000 recurrent to cater for the 
planned activities during the financial year. How-
ever, due to changes on Government expenditure 
priorities the Agency had a budget reduction of 
Ksh. 316,000,000 representing 23% decrease 
of the original budget in the first supplementa-
ry budget cycle, and a further Ksh.  50,493,507 
in the second supplementary cycle resulting to 
a total development budget reduction of Ksh. 
366,493,507. The recurrent budget was main-
tained as approved. 

The reduction resulted in a final budget of Ksh. 
1,009,506,493 being Ksh.  795,000,000 recurrent 
and Ksh.214,506,493 development. The budget-
ary reduction necessitated expenditure rationalisa-
tion and reallocation which has negatively affected 
planned activities.  For the Financial Year ended 30 
June 2024, the overall budget absorption rate was 
100% of the total annual budget allocation. 

2023/2024
Ksh Million

2022/2023
Ksh Million

Change
Ksh Million

% Change

Development 214.5 340 (125.5) (37%) 

Recurrent 795 578 217 38%

 Total 1,009.5 918 91.5 10%

Table 9: Comparison of budget allocation for the financial year 2023/2024 and 2022/2023
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2023/2024
Ksh Million

2022/2023
Ksh Million

Change
Ksh Million

% Increase
(Decrease)

Use goods and services 475.6 439.9 35.7 9%

Compensation of employees 453.5 416.7 36.8 9%

Board expenses 31.6 29.1 2.5 9%

Repairs and maintenance 10.2 21.2 -11 (52%)

Purchase of non-financial assets 10.2 21.4 -11.2 (50%)

Total 981.1 928.3 52.8 6%

Table 10: Comparison of expenditure incurred for the financial year 2023/2024 and 2022/2023

Figure 2: Comparison of budget allocation for the financial year 2023/2024 and 2022/2023

Revenue

Revenues are government grants in form of ex-
chequer disbursements from the Ministry of En-
ergy and grants from International Atomic Ener-
gy Agency. During the Financial year the Agency 
received 100% exchequer allocation for the period 
amounting to Ksh. 1,009.5M. This resulted to an 
increase of 10% in respect to exchequer receipts 
from the previous year as shown above.
During the period under review the Agency real-
ised a revenue of Ksh. 321,616 being supported 
by the International Atomic Energy Agency(IAEA), 
Ksh. 64,232 from interest charged on staff loans 

and Ksh. 1,012,634 as compensation from WIBA. 
The total other incomes was Ksh. 1,398,482.

Expenditure

As at the end of the financial year 2023/2024, the 
Agency had incurred a total expenditure of Ksh. 
989.5M against Ksh.927.8 M in the year 2022/2023. 
Further, the Agency spent Ksh. 10.8M on purchase 
of fixed assets compared to  Ksh. 21.4M  spent on 
the same in the FY 2022/2023. 
The expenses were incurred under the following 
categories; 
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Figure 3: Comparison of expenditure incurred for the financial year 2023/2024 and    2022/2023.

Figure 4: Revenue and expenditure analysis for the last five years

Table 11: Revenue and expenditure analysis for the last five years

The Agency’s revenue and expenditure has grown gradually over the last five years as depicted in the table 
below:

 FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24

 Kshs Million Kshs Million Kshs Million Kshs Million Kshs Million

Total Revenue 907.8 813.6 805.4 918.8 1,009.5

Total Expenditure 640.1 712.2 869.5 927.8 989.5
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Table 12: Major risks and mitigation strategies

Over the period of five years (2019-2024) the Agen-
cy revenue has marginally grown from Ksh.907.8M 
in the FY 2019/2020 to Ksh.1,009.5M in the finan-
cial year under review.
During the period between the FY 2019/2020 to FY 
2023/2024 the expenditure has gradually grown 
from Ksh.640.1M to the current financial year 
2023/2024 expenditure of Ksh.989.5M.

Compliance with Statutory requirements
NuPEA complied with all the statutory provisions 
in terms of reporting requirements, taxation re-
turns, and payment and all financial obligations 
related to payroll statutory deductions.
There was no non-compliance that may expose 
the Agency to potential contingent liabilities of any 
future financial loss.

I.	 Major Risks facing NuPEA
Risk management is an integral part of the Agen-
cy’s control and corporate governance structures. 
The framework is based on an ongoing process de-
signed to identify the principal risks to the achieve-
ment of NuPEA’s objectives, evaluate the nature 

and extent of those risks and manage risks effi-
ciently, effectively and economically within the risk 
appetite set by the Agency.
The Risk Management Framework as defined by 
ISO 31000 is a set of components that provide the 
foundations and organisational arrangements for 
designing, implementing, reviewing and continu-
ally improving risk management throughout the 
organisation.

In the FY 2018/2019, the Agency adopted a pro-
active process-based approach towards identifi-
cation, mitigation and management of risks that 
could impede the realisation of its objectives. De-
partmental Risk Registers were developed in line 
with ISO 9001:2018 and the Agency’s Quality Pro-
cedures. 
During the FY 2023/2024, the Agency continued 
to implement its risk management framework by 
reviewing the corporate risk register and training 
risk champions.

A summary of the major risks and mitigation strat-
egies is provided in the table below:

Risk 
Category

Description Risks Mitigation Strategy

Strategic Risk Risks arising during the 
strategic management 
process (planning, 
implementation, 
monitoring and 
evaluation).

1.	 Failure to achieve 
the strategic 
objectives.

2.	 Weak monitoring, 
evaluation and 
reporting.

1.	 Stakeholder involvement 
during planning.

2.	 Develop and implement a 
Monitoring and Evaluation 
system/plan.

3.	 Implement a performance 
management system.

Operational 
Risk

Risks arising from 
activities engaged in 
including systems, 
processes and 
procedures.

1.	 Lack of requisite 
policies, procedures 
and systems.

1.	 Develop/Review requisite 
policies and procedures.

2.	 Implement appropriate 
organisational systems (i.e. 
ISO 90001:2015, ISO/IEC 
27001:2013, ISO 31000).

Technology 
Risk

Risks arising from 
technological, process 
and service delivery 
innovations

1.	 Resistance to 
adoption of new 
technologies.

2.	 Information 
security and 
cybercrime.

1.	 Undertake staff training on 
new systems adopted by the 
Agency.

2.	 Continuous monitoring and 
strengthening of information 
system security.
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Risk 
Category

Description Risks Mitigation Strategy

Political Risks Change in government 
laws and policies

1.	 Change in 
government 
priorities

2.	 Social Media 
Influence and 
Activism (Gen-Z 
in Kenya is highly 
active on social 
media platforms.)

1.	 Advising the government on 
the status of ongoing projects

2.	 Public Communication and 
Stakeholder Management 
strategy

3.	 Open Channels of 
Communication (with 
Gen-Z through social media 
platforms, town halls, and 
forums)

Human 
Resource Risk

This entails adequacy 
of staff capacity and 
support initiatives

1.	 Inadequate staff 
capacity - number 
and skill mix.

2.	 Inadequate support 
of various initiatives

1.	 Hire staff with requisite skills.
2.	 Staff training and 

development.
3.	 Develop and implement 

strategies that will facilitate 
retention of qualified and 
productive staff.

4.	 Monitor and evaluate 
Job Descriptions and 
specifications.

Financial Risk This involves the 
adequacy and 
accessibility of 
funds to finance the 
Agency’s projects and 
programmes.

1.	 Inadequate 
funding.

2.	 Delays in 
disbursement 
of resources to 
programmes/
activities.

3.	 Delayed project 
implementation

1.	 Pitch for allocation of 
adequate resources from the 
government.

2.	 Seek support from 
development partners.

3.	 Synchronise work plans, 
budgets and procurement 
plans.

4.	 Adherence to the 
procurement plan

5.	 Strengthen internal controls; 
Implement internal audit 
recommendations"

Legal and 
Regulatory 
Risk

These are risks that arise 
as a result of change in 
laws and regulations, 
amendment of laws and 
inability of the Agency 
to meet its contractual 
commitments /
obligations

1.	 Inadequate 
regulatory 
framework.

2.	 Litigation

1.	 Propose review and 
development of relevant laws 
and regulations.

2.	 Ensure full compliance 
with applicable laws and 
regulations.

3.	 Enhance public participation 
and stakeholder engagement.

4.	 Legal & Compliance Audits
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II.	 Material arrears in statutory and finan-
cial obligations

NuPEA has no material arrears in statutory obliga-
tions but has a contingent financial obligation in 
reference to court cause ELCEPPET  No. 3 of 2023 
Malindi “Mkoba Ngolo & another VS NuPEA & 2 
others and three interested parties”.

III.	 NuPEA’s financial probity and serious 
governance issues

The Agency did not have any financial impropri-
ety reported by either internal audit, Board Audit 
Committee, external auditors, or any other Na-
tional Government Agencies providing oversight.  
There were no serious governance issues among 
the Board and top management including conflict 
of interest.
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Environmental and Sustainability Reporting

The Nuclear Power and Energy Agency (NuPEA) is 
a State Corporation established under the Energy 
Act 2019. The Agency’s mandate as stipulated in 
Section 56(1) of the Energy Act, 2019, is to be the 
nuclear energy programme implementing organ-
isation and promote the development of nuclear 
electricity generation in Kenya; and to carry out 
research, development and dissemination activi-
ties in the energy and petroleum sectors in Kenya. 
Below is a brief highlight of the Agency’s achieve-
ments in the following four sustainability pillars: 

i)	 Sustainability strategy and profile  
The Nuclear Power Programme and the Nucle-
ar Research Reactor project represent significant 
strides towards sustainable energy and advanced 
research capabilities in Kenya. Guided by interna-
tional standards such as the IAEA’s Milestone Ap-
proach, these initiatives are strategically planned 
to ensure robust infrastructure, regulatory frame-
works, and human resource development.

NuPEA, being the Nuclear Energy Programme 
Implementing Organization (NEPIO), has an im-
portant role to play in attainment of Vision 2030 
aspirations by enhancing access to clean, afforda-
ble, reliable and efficient energy in the country. 
Within the Vision 2030, energy is recognized as a 
key enabler to the implementation of the flagship 
projects which will lead to increased power de-
mand. NuPEA is also expected to play a critical role 
in accelerating economic development by raising 
productivity and efficiency levels across the three 
pillars through coordination of research and devel-
opment (R&D) and capacity building activities/ ini-
tiatives in the energy and petroleum sectors.

Kenya’s Nuclear Power program has been on a 
positive trajectory due to strong government sup-
port as a semi-autonomous nuclear implementing 
agency. The Agency is working in collaboration 
with all national and international stakeholders to 
ensure full implementation of the program safely 
and securely. Nuclear is playing a crucial role in the 
realisation of Kenya’s vision 2030.
NuPEA is implementing two Vision 2030 Pro-
grammes, namely;

a) 	 Nuclear power programme – first nuclear 
power plant to be commissioned in 2034

b) 	 Research Reactor Programme – first nu-
clear research facility to be commissioned 
in 2030

In undertaking this mandate the Agency is imple-
menting the following flagship high priority BETA 
projects:

i. 	 Nuclear Power Programme Resource De-
velopment

ii. 	 Development of Legal and Regulato-
ry Framework for Nuclear Power Pro-
gramme

iii. 	 Development of the necessary nuclear re-
lated infrastructure

iv. 	 Public and Stakeholder Engagement
v.  	 Energy Research and Development
vi. 	 Capacity Building in the Energy and Pe-

troleum Sectors energy and petroleum 
sectors through efficient coordination of 
R&D and capacity building.

ii)	 Environmental performance
The Nuclear Power and Energy Agency is charged 
with the responsibility of promoting and imple-
menting Kenya’s Nuclear Power Programme and 
carrying out research and development for the 
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energy sector. Towards attainment of its mandate, 
the Nuclear Power and Energy Agency is current-
ly developing policies and legislation, identifying 
suitable sites for the construction of Nuclear Power 
Plants, carrying out research, development and in-
novation on energy technologies as well as capaci-
ty building for the energy sector.

Currently, NuPEA does not generate any waste 
streams. However, future prospects and goals of 
undertaking its mandate will be the construction 
of the first nuclear power plant for generation of 
electricity and also the construction of the first re-
search reactor facility for utilisation in the medical 
sector, education sector, industry, agriculture and 
research and development. These facilities will 
generate waste streams in the form of radioactive 
waste and spent fuel (irradiated nuclear fuel in the 
reactor core). Therefore, a clear policy and strategy 
needs to be in place to realise safe management of 
radioactive waste and spent fuel, in terms of stor-
age, transport, processing, and eventual disposal 
(geological disposal) with minimal or no release to 
harm people and the environment. Another possi-
bility of waste generation that is beyond radioac-
tive waste and spent fuel generation is during con-
struction and decommissioning of the mentioned 
facilities and construction Kenya’s first deep and 
near-surface geological disposal facilities for spent 
fuel material and radioactive waste. 

With these in mind, current guidance laws that 
shall achieve the above objectives and align to the 
mandate of NuPEA are:

a)	 The Environmental Management and Co-
ordination Act (EMCA) - a framework law 
on environmental management and con-
servation. The Act provides for environ-
mental protection through;
i.	 Environmental impact assessment 

of a facility and public participation.
ii.	 Environmental audit and monitor-

ing.
iii.	 Environmental restoration orders, 

conservation orders, and ease-
ments.

iv.	 Strategic Environmental Assess-
ment (SEA) for integrating environ-
mental consideration into Policies, 
Plans, and Programs (PPP) and 
evaluating the inter-linkage with 
economic and social considerations 
through public participation.

b)	 NEMA subsidiary legislations on environ-
ment protection
i.	 NEMA has established subsidiary 

legislations for regulations of activi-
ty that would result in generation of 
any waste to minimise harmful en-
vironmental impact to any activities, 
in this case the nuclear power pro-
gramme.

c)	 Nuclear Regulatory Act establishment of 
Kenya Nuclear Regulatory Authority - a 
comprehensive framework for the regula-
tion of safe, secure and peaceful utilisation 
of atomic energy and nuclear technology; 
the production and use of radiation sourc-
es and the management of radioactive 
waste and spent fuel management
i.	 The act provides provisions for clas-

sification of radioactive waste, reg-
ulations, responsibility, export and 
import controls and safety require-
ments of a facility licensed for man-
agement/ production of waste, to 
ensure no release of radioactive ma-
terial that could bring harm, dam-
age to people and the environment.

d)	 KNRA subsidiary legislations on nuclear 
regulations and environmental protection
i.	 KNRA shall provide subsidiary leg-

islation to regulate activities that 
would result in generation of radi-
oactive waste, through inspection, 
requirements, licensing and quality 
management and planning.

iii)	 Employee welfare
The Nuclear Power and Energy Agency recognizes 
all its employees as the most valuable resource and 
that the welfare of all staff is essential in achieving 
the Agency’s Vision and Mission. The Agency is 
committed to providing a caring and supportive 
working environment which is conducive to the 
welfare of all staff to enable them to develop and 
optimize their full potential. The staff welfare is a 
joint responsibility and members of staff are ex-
pected to contribute and participate effectively. 
The Agency has in place staff welfare policies and 
schemes such as staff medical, group life and work 
injury benefits, mortgage and car loan among oth-
ers.
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a)  Recruitment
The Agency recognizes that human capital is a crit-
ical asset to achievement of its strategic objectives 
and is fundamental to its success. The Agency has 
adopted a strategic and systematic approach to 
resourcing in order to attract and retain competent 
staff with requisite skills, knowledge and capabil-
ities.

The Agency is an equal opportunity employer and 
is committed to ensuring that the recruitment and 
selection of employees is conducted in a manner 
that is competitive, promotes equal opportunity, 
equality, diversity and does no not discriminate 

on the basis of race religion, ethnicity or any other 
form of discrimination.

The Constitutional requirements on mainstream-
ing of gender and persons with disabilities as 
stipulated in Article 52 and 57 of the Constitution 
Kenya 2010 are observed alongside other policies 
issued by the National Cohesion and Integration 
Commission.
The Agency has a gender policy in place and gen-
der-based policies that are aligned to the national 
values.

Figure 5:Ethnic composition of the 
NuPEA staff members

Figure 6: NuPEA percentage gender 
composition
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b)  Career guidelines
The Agency has a Career Guidelines Policy that 
guides on appointment and promotion of employ-
ees in their respective field of employment in order 
to promote career growth and motivate employ-
ees. The Career Guidelines Policy outlines the com-
petency framework, experiences and qualifications 
required for career progression. It also defines and 
documents the Agency’s succession plan by defin-
ing positions, responsibilities and accountabilities 
in a progressive manner.

ting of agreed performance targets, feedback 
and reporting. It is linked to other human re-
source systems and processes including employ-
ee development, career guidelines, placement, 
rewards and sanctions.
The Agency has put in place an incentive scheme 
aimed at rewarding members of staff based on 
the value they are adding to the Agency in rela-
tion to their performance, approved experience 
and professional skills/competence. The Rewards 
and Sanction framework establishes a basis for 
rewarding exemplary performance and adminis-
tering sanctions for poor performance, motivat-
ing employees to have a positive attitude to work 
and to enhance productivity in the Agency.

d)  Training and Development 
Whilst the Agency will recruit competent per-
sonnel, it endeavours to continuously upgrade 
employee’s core competencies, knowledge, skills 
and attitudes of its employees to ensure that their 
performance meets and/or exceeds the mini-
mum expectations and benchmarks best prac-
tices. The Agency therefore recognizes the need 
for training and development of all employees in 
order to ensure effective delivery of it’s mandate. 
The Agency is committed to providing training 
and development opportunities to all staff in a 
fair and equitable manner without any form of 
discrimination. 

In the year under review, NuPEA conducted in-
ternal training needs assessment and facilitated 
employees to undertake Continuous Professional 
Development (CPD) courses offered by their re-
spective professional bodies. The Agency also fa-
cilitated other trainings and conferences for staff 
members which has been of great importance in 
improvement of NuPEA’s work execution.

e)  Occupational Health and Safety
The Management of NuPEA is committed to the 
health and safety of its employees and stakehold-
ers at large. Management is committed to contin-
uing improvement toward an accident-free work-
place through effective administration, education 
and training. To this end, the Agency has devel-
oped OHS Policy that provides guidelines for Nu-
PEA to make conscious effort to conserve and 
improve safe and healthy working conditions for 
staff, clients and visitors in compliance with Occu-
pational Safety and Health Act No. 15 of 2007 and 

Figure 7: Academics qualification

c)  Performance Management
The Agency is committed to promoting high per-
formance standards in order to achieve its overall 
mandate and strategic objectives. To this end, the 
Agency has adopted the application of perfor-
mance contracting, a results-oriented system of 
management aimed at introducing a systematic 
process of planning work, setting goals and expec-
tations, continually monitoring performance, de-
veloping the capacity to perform and periodically 
rating performance. The Agency Performance 
contract is anchored on national development 
goals with clear linkage to the Agency’s strategic 
plan.  It is cascaded to all Departments/ Divisions, 
levels and cadres of employees. 
The Staff Performance Appraisal system (SPAS) is 
grounded on the principle of work planning, set-
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any other relevant occupational safety and health 
legislation and regulations.  The policy seeks to re-
duce the number of work-related accidents and 
diseases, and equitably provide compensation and 
rehabilitation to those injured at work or who con-
tract occupational diseases.

iv)	 Marketplace practices
NuPEA is committed to public advertising as a 
part of enhancing knowledge and understanding 
of Kenya’s nuclear power programme and its man-
date. This is also geared towards strengthening 
its brand and corporate visibility. The target audi-
ence is both national and international stakehold-
ers including members of the general public. The 
Agency’s advertisements are intended to publicise 
packaged key messages about nuclear energy, job 
vacancies, NuPEA events, and procurement op-
portunities among other infomercials. 

In order to realize sustainable advertising, NuPEA 
deploys an intensive multimedia approach. The 
Agency majorly utilizes electronic and print media 
such as paid-up advertorials on television, radio 
and newspaper supplements particularly on My-
Gov. Further, the Agency undertakes digital media 
advertising which entails proactive publishing of 
content on its website and social media platforms 
(Twitter, Facebook, Instagram and YouTube). Other 
forms of advertising used by the Agency include 
Information, Education and Communications (IEC) 
materials such as brochures, fliers, banners and as-
sorted branded merchandise which help to boost 
its brand image and visibility.

a)	 Responsible competition practice
	 The Agency gives the suppliers opportu-

nities to register with the Agency on dif-
ferent categories to provide goods, works 
and services on the expertise they have. 
Further, the Agency invites registered sup-
pliers on a rotational basis to ensure equal 
chances in the bidding process.

b)	 Responsible Supply chain and supplier 
relations

	 The Agency ensures supplier relationships 
through collaboration and working as a 
team with its suppliers. This involves hav-
ing a two -way information flow and re-
solving any arising conflicts amicably.

In the year under review, the Agency the Agency 
total procurement awards were  Kshs. 156,686,884, 
out of which Kshs. 103,554,608 representing 66% 
was allocated to the preference groups. This is in 
accordance with the Procurement act, regulations 
and Government preferential procurement policy 
on Access to Government Procurement Opportu-
nities (AGPO). The regulation provides for a public 
entity to allocate at least 30% of its procurement 
budget for procuring goods, works and services 
from micro and small enterprises owned by youth, 
women and Persons with Disabilities (PWDs). 
These procurement opportunities have created 
diverse financial benefits for the special groups as 
well as enhancing the NuPEA’s corporate image 
and reputation.
The Agency is committed to ensuring that suppli-
er’s payment documents are compiled on a timely 
basis to ensure that the payments for the goods/ 
works/services are done within the stipulated pe-
riod.

c)	 Responsible marketing and advertising
	 The Agency advertises its open tenders 

via MyGov and the Agency’s official web-
site as per the government guidelines on 
public procurement.

	
d)	 Product stewardship
	 The Agency ensures that the goods and 

services procured meet the standard re-
quirements.

v)	 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)/ 
Community Engagements 

As a corporate citizen, NuPEA values and cher-
ishes the rich tapestry, variety and diversity of the 
country’s social fabric through its commitment to 
supporting endeavours that better the lives of Ken-
yans. Concurrently with its operations, the Agency 
continued implementing CSR initiatives in com-
munities with a view to make a positive impact in 
the lives of the people living in them.
NuPEA is committed to environmental conserva-
tion and partnership with other stakeholders to-
wards the attainment of the presidential directive 
on national tree growing. The Government aims to 
realize the growing of 15 Billion trees by 2032 to in-
crease forest cover in the country. In the FY 2023/24, 
the Agency made a strong pitch for environmental 
conservation during tree planting exercises where 
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over 144,500 tree seedlings were planted in Meru, 
Kilifi, Kakamega, Kericho, Baringo, and Trans-Nzoia 
counties and at the Konza Technopolis. This initia-
tive is in line with the Agency’s commitment and 
efforts to contribute to the global mitigation of cli-
mate change by promoting sustainable environ-
mental stewardship across Kenya.

NuPEA implemented the education sponsorship 
program by awarding 102 needy secondary school 
students from the potential host communities of 
Uyombo and the larger Matsangoni (Kilifi Coun-
ty). The program is anchored on the need to pro-
mote the key role played by academic institutions 
particularly in laying the foundation for Science, 
Technology, Engineering and Mathematics (STEM) 

subjects as well as nurturing the future nuclear 
workforce. This is also part of fostering a mutual 
relationship with the communities around the po-
tential site for hosting Kenya’s first nuclear power 
plant. 

Further, the Agency undertook a CSR initiative 
to Thoya-Oya Children’s Home in Kadaina Island 
in Matsangoni, Kilifi County. In addition to giving 
in-kind donations to the Home, the initiative also 
aimed to encourage young children to pursue ex-
cellence in their education, with particular empha-
sis on the importance of excelling in sciences and 
mathematics as requisite subjects for pursuing a 
career in the nuclear industry.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors submit their report together with the 
audited financial statements for the year ended 
June 30, 2024, which show the state of the Nuclear 
Power and Energy Agency affairs.

i)  Principal activities
The principal activities of the Agency as stipulated 
in the Energy Act of 2019 is;

(a)	 To be the nuclear energy programme 
implementing organisation & promote 
the development of nuclear electricity 
generation in Kenya

(b)	 Carry out research, development and 
dissemination activities in the energy and 
nuclear power sector.

ii)  Results
The results of the Entity for the year ended June 30, 
2024, are set out on page 1 to 35

iii)  Directors
The members of the Board of Directors who served 
during the year are shown on page xi to xvii. 

iv)	 Surplus remission
In accordance with Regulation 219 (2) of the Pub-
lic Financial Management (National Government) 
Regulations, regulatory entities shall remit into the 
Consolidated Fund, ninety per centum of its sur-
plus funds reported in the audited financial state-
ments after the end of each financial year. Nuclear 
Power and Energy Agency does not fall under cat-
egory 3 and hence did not any remittance to the 
Consolidated Fund.

v)	 Auditors
The Auditor-General is responsible for the statutory 
audit of the Nuclear Power and Energy Agency in 
accordance with Article 229 of the Constitution of 
Kenya and the Public Audit Act 2015.

By Order of the Board

Name: CS Serah Esendi
Corporation Secretary
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Section 81 of the Public Finance Management Act, 
2012 and section 14 of the State Corporations Act 
require the Directors to prepare financial state-
ments in respect of the Agency, which give a true 
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Agency at 
the end of the financial year/period and the oper-
ating results of the Agency for that year/period. The 
Directors are also required to ensure that the Agen-
cy keeps proper accounting records which disclose 
with reasonable accuracy the financial position of 
the Agency. The Directors are also responsible for 
safeguarding the assets of the Agency.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation 
and presentation of the Agency’s financial state-
ments, which give a true and fair view of the state 
of affairs of the Agency for and as at the end of the 
financial year (period) ended on June 30, 2024. This 
responsibility includes:
i. 	 Maintaining adequate financial 

management arrangements and 
ensuring that these continue      to be 
effective throughout the reporting 
period;

ii. 	 Maintaining proper accounting records, 
which disclose with reasonable accuracy 
at any time the financial position of the 
Agency;

iii. 	 Designing, implementing and 
maintaining internal controls relevant 
to the preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial statements, and 
ensuring that they are free from material 

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

misstatements, whether due to error or 
fraud;

iv. 	 Safeguarding the assets of the Agency;
v. 	 Selecting and applying appropriate 

accounting policies; and
vi. 	 Making accounting estimates that are 

reasonable in the circumstances.

The Directors accept responsibility for the Agen-
cy’s financial statements, which have been pre-
pared using appropriate accounting policies sup-
ported by reasonable and prudent judgements 
and estimates, in conformity with International 
Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and 
in the manner required by the PFM Act, 2012 and 
the State Corporations Act. The Directors are of 
the opinion that the Agency’s financial statements 
give a true and fair view of the state of the Agency’s 
transactions during the financial year ended June 
30, 2024, and of the Agency’s financial position as 
at that date.

The Directors further confirm the completeness of 
the accounting records maintained for the Agen-
cy, which have been relied upon in the preparation 
of the Agency’s financial statements as well as the 
adequacy of the systems of internal financial con-
trol.
Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors 
to indicate that the Agency will not remain a going 
concern for at least the next twelve months from 
the date of this statement.

Approval of the financial statements	
The Agency’s financial statements were approved by the Board on _________________ 2024 and signed on 
its behalf by:

………………………………………………...
Mr. Ezra Odondi Odhiambo
CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD.

…………………...........................……………………………..
CS Justus A. Wabuyabo, LLM (UoN)
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

4.CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

  
INIR  mission. The follow up mission was conducted in June 2021. I am pleased to inform you 
that the INIR follow up mission pointed out that Kenya has made considerable progress in the 
development of the Nuclear Power Programme. Of note, Kenya has enacted a  national nuclear 
law and created a regulatory body with clear responsibilities for nuclear safety, security and 
safeguards. The Agency has also commenced assessing the nuclear legal framework and iden-
tifying other legislation that require review and developed a number of policies and strategies 
in key areas. The key areas include nuclear security and radioactive waste management with 
a view to enable the Government to make informed decisions on the introduction of nuclear 
power.
NuPEA finalized the preparation of a 5-year Strategic Plan for the period 2020 – 2025 in or-
der toincorporate the Agency’s expanded mandate in accordance with the Energy Act No.1 of 
2019. This Plan builds on and complements the 15-year roadmap for Kenya’s Nuclear Power 
Programme. Importantly, the Strategic Plan also takes cognizance of the national development 
agenda as contained in various policy documents including the Constitution of Kenya (2010), 
Vision 2030 and the Big Four Agenda
The Agency places great premium on both local and international stakeholder engagement 
through concerted effort towards adopting strategic and mutually beneficial collaborative agree-
ments. The Agency recognizes that strong strategic partnerships are pivotal in enhancing ef-
fective implementation of its mandate. These partnerships support NuPEA’s commitment to 
promoting and implementing Kenya’s Nuclear Power Programme, carrying out research and 
development and capacity building in the energy and petroleum sectors. 
In the year under review, the Agency steered through a myriad of challenges. The Covid-19 
pandemic and the attendant restrictions imposed by the Government on movement impeded 
some critical activities that included international visits and training programmes. In addition, 
our budgetary allocation was significantly reduced from Ksh 895.2M in the FY 2019/20 to Kshs 
813.5M in FY 2020/21. This reduction constrained the attainment of the Agency’s expanded 
mandate that presently adds on research and development, as well as capacity building for the 
energy and nuclear power sector.
As the Agency transitions into FY 2021/22, we remain committed to building on the gains made 
so far in developing the Nuclear Power Programme and enhancing the coordination frameworks 
for research and development, and capacity building for the energy and petroleum sectors.
On behalf of the Board of Directors, I express gratitude to the Ministry of Energy, development 
partners, the management, staff, and all our stakeholders for their continued support as we 
strive to achieve our mandate.

Mr Ezra Odondi Odhiambo 
Chairman, Nuclear Power and Energy Agency

xi.

On  behalf  of  the Board of Directors, I take pleasure in present-
ing the Nuclear Power and Energy Agency’s Annual Report 
and  Financial   statements   for  the year  ended  30th  June 2021.

In a bid to make  Kenya  ready  for  Nuclear   Power generation, the
International   Atomic  Energy  Agency(IAEA)  conducted   a  Phase1 
Integrated  Nuclear  Infrastructure  Review (INIR) mission in  Au-
gust 2015. The IAEA INIR   mission   is   designed   to   assist   Member                                                          
States in evaluating the status of their national infrastructure for the 
introduction   of a nuclear  power programme. In October 2018, Kenya 
requested  the IAEA  to conduct  a follow  up   INIR  mission  to review 
the   status   of  implementation  of   the recommendation  from the  2015

N UCLEAR PO WE R
& ENER GY  A GENC Y

NuPEA Annual Reports and Financial Statements For the year ended June 30, 2021

30th December
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Report of the Auditor General on Nuclear 
Power and Energy Agency for the Year 
Ended 30 June 2024

REPUBLIC OF KENYA

Telephone: +254-(20) 3214000

Email: info@oagkenya.go.ke

Website: www.oagkenya.go.ke 

HEADQUARTERS 
Anniversary Towers 

Monrovia Street 
P.O. Box 30084-00100

NAIROBI 

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON NUCLEAR POWER AND ENERGY
AGENCY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2024

PREAMBLE 

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts: 

A.  Report on Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements are 
fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,  
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect on 
the financial statements. 

B.  Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in the Use of Public Resources which consider 
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars, 
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent, 
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government 
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the  intended purpose. 

C. Report on Effectiveness of Internal Controls, Risk Management and Governance which 
considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal 
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, risk 
management environment and internal controls, developed and implemented by those 
charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the entity. 

An Unmodified Opinion is issued when the Auditor-General concludes that the financial 
statements are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting 
framework. The Report on Financial Statements should be read together with the Report on 
Lawfulness and Effectiveness in the Use of Public Resources, and the Report on 
Effectiveness of Internal Controls, Risk Management, and Governance. 

The three parts of the report aim to address the Auditor-General’s statutory rules and 
responsibilities as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the Public Finance 
Management Act, 2012, and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of the report
when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General. 

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Opinion

I have audited the accompanying finacial statements of Nuclear Poser and Energy
Agency (NuPEA) Set out on pages 1 to 31, which comprise the statement of financial 
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position as at 30 June, 2024 and the statement of financial performance, statement of  
changes in net assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget and 
actual amounts for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the 
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015, I have obtained all the 
information and explanations which to the best of my knowledge and belief, were 
necessary for the purpose of the audit. 

In my opinion, financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Nuclear Power and Energy Agency (NuPEA) as at 30 June, 2024 and of its 
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with 
international Public Sector Accounting Standards, Accrual Basis and comply with the 
Public Finance Management Act,  2012 and the Energy Act, 2019. 

Basis for Opinion 

The audit was conducted in accordance with International Standards for Supreme Audit 
Institutions (ISSAIs). I am independent of the Nuclear Power and Energy Agency 
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 ON THE Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with the ethical 
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe that 
the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
unqualified opinion. 

Emphasis of Matter  

1. Budgetary Control and Performance 

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts indicates final budgeted  
expenditure of Kshs. 933,006,493 against actual expenditure of Kshs. 1,000,013,701 
resulting to an over-expenditure of Kshs. 67,006,780 or 7% of the approved budget. 
Additionally, the Agency incurred an expenditure of Kshs. 9,752,225 on research and 
development against approved budget of Kshs. 66,500,000 resulting to an under 
absorption of Kshs. 56,747,775 or 85% of the approved budget. 

The under expenditure may have impacted negatively on service delivery to the public. 

2. Late Exchaquer Release

The statement of financial performance reflects transfers from other government entities 
totaling Kshs. 998,709,443 as disclosed in Note 6 to the financial statements. However, 
review of the bank statements revealed that Kshs. 66,250,000 of exchequer receipts were 
released from The National Treasury on 8 July, 2024, after closure of the financial period. 
Management statement that the funds were received through the Ministry of Eenergy and 
has no direct way of requesting the exchequer releases. Delay in release of exchequer 
could have affected the Agency’s budget performance and execution for the year ended 30 
June, 2024.

Report of the Auditor-General on Nuclear Power and Energy Agency for the year ended 30 June, 2024 
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Management statement that the funds were received through the Ministry of Eenergy and 
has no direct way of requesting the exchequer releases. Delay in release of exchequer 
could have affected the Agency’s budget performance and execution for the year ended 30 
June, 2024.

Report of the Auditor-General on Nuclear Power and Energy Agency for the year ended 30 June, 2024 
2



NUCLEAR POWER AND ENERGY AGENCY  ANNUAL REPORTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

LXI
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position of Nuclear Power and Energy Agency (NuPEA) as at 30 June, 2024 and of its 
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with 
international Public Sector Accounting Standards, Accrual Basis and comply with the 
Public Finance Management Act,  2012 and the Energy Act, 2019. 

Basis for Opinion 

The audit was conducted in accordance with International Standards for Supreme Audit 
Institutions (ISSAIs). I am independent of the Nuclear Power and Energy Agency 
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 ON THE Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with the ethical 
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe that 
the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
unqualified opinion. 

Emphasis of Matter  

1. Budgetary Control and Performance 

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts indicates final budgeted  
expenditure of Kshs. 933,006,493 against actual expenditure of Kshs. 1,000,013,701 
resulting to an over-expenditure of Kshs. 67,006,780 or 7% of the approved budget. 
Additionally, the Agency incurred an expenditure of Kshs. 9,752,225 on research and 
development against approved budget of Kshs. 66,500,000 resulting to an under 
absorption of Kshs. 56,747,775 or 85% of the approved budget. 

The under expenditure may have impacted negatively on service delivery to the public. 

2. Late Exchaquer Release

The statement of financial performance reflects transfers from other government entities 
totaling Kshs. 998,709,443 as disclosed in Note 6 to the financial statements. However, 
review of the bank statements revealed that Kshs. 66,250,000 of exchequer receipts were 
released from The National Treasury on 8 July, 2024, after closure of the financial period. 
Management statement that the funds were received through the Ministry of Eenergy and 
has no direct way of requesting the exchequer releases. Delay in release of exchequer 
could have affected the Agency’s budget performance and execution for the year ended 30 
June, 2024.

Report of the Auditor-General on Nuclear Power and Energy Agency for the year ended 30 June, 2024 
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development against approved budget of Kshs. 66,500,000 resulting to an under 
absorption of Kshs. 56,747,775 or 85% of the approved budget. 
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2. Late Exchaquer Release

The statement of financial performance reflects transfers from other government entities 
totaling Kshs. 998,709,443 as disclosed in Note 6 to the financial statements. However, 
review of the bank statements revealed that Kshs. 66,250,000 of exchequer receipts were 
released from The National Treasury on 8 July, 2024, after closure of the financial period. 
Management statement that the funds were received through the Ministry of Eenergy and 
has no direct way of requesting the exchequer releases. Delay in release of exchequer 
could have affected the Agency’s budget performance and execution for the year ended 30 
June, 2024.
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Notes FY 2023/2024 FY 2022/2023

Revenue from non-exchange transactions Kshs Kshs

Transfers from other government entities 6 998,709,443 896,645,711

Other Income 7 1,398,482 752,714

Total Revenue 1,000,107,925 897,398,425

 

Expenses

Use of goods and services 8  475,581,845 439,943,721

Employee costs 9  453,507,927 416,651,566

Board expenses 10  31,554,959 29,105,737

Depreciation and amortization expense 11  18,686,569 20,841,926

Repairs and maintenance 12  10,194,067 21,214,640

Total expenses  989,525,368 927,757,590

Surplus before Tax  10,582,557 (30,359,165)

Taxation

Surplus(Deficit) for the period  10,582,557 (30,359,165)

Statement of Financial Performance 
for the Year Ended 30 June, 2024

The notes set out on pages 8 to 25 form an integral part of these Financial Statements

The Financial Statements set out on pages 1 to 7 were signed on behalf of the Board of Directors by:

Chief Executive Officer   
CS Justus Wabuyabo, LLM (UoN)                

Date: 

Head of Finance 
CPA Caren Oduor 
CPAK No: 6187        
Date:

Chairman of the Board
Mr. Ezra Odhiambo   

Date:

4.CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

  
INIR  mission. The follow up mission was conducted in June 2021. I am pleased to inform you 
that the INIR follow up mission pointed out that Kenya has made considerable progress in the 
development of the Nuclear Power Programme. Of note, Kenya has enacted a  national nuclear 
law and created a regulatory body with clear responsibilities for nuclear safety, security and 
safeguards. The Agency has also commenced assessing the nuclear legal framework and iden-
tifying other legislation that require review and developed a number of policies and strategies 
in key areas. The key areas include nuclear security and radioactive waste management with 
a view to enable the Government to make informed decisions on the introduction of nuclear 
power.
NuPEA finalized the preparation of a 5-year Strategic Plan for the period 2020 – 2025 in or-
der toincorporate the Agency’s expanded mandate in accordance with the Energy Act No.1 of 
2019. This Plan builds on and complements the 15-year roadmap for Kenya’s Nuclear Power 
Programme. Importantly, the Strategic Plan also takes cognizance of the national development 
agenda as contained in various policy documents including the Constitution of Kenya (2010), 
Vision 2030 and the Big Four Agenda
The Agency places great premium on both local and international stakeholder engagement 
through concerted effort towards adopting strategic and mutually beneficial collaborative agree-
ments. The Agency recognizes that strong strategic partnerships are pivotal in enhancing ef-
fective implementation of its mandate. These partnerships support NuPEA’s commitment to 
promoting and implementing Kenya’s Nuclear Power Programme, carrying out research and 
development and capacity building in the energy and petroleum sectors. 
In the year under review, the Agency steered through a myriad of challenges. The Covid-19 
pandemic and the attendant restrictions imposed by the Government on movement impeded 
some critical activities that included international visits and training programmes. In addition, 
our budgetary allocation was significantly reduced from Ksh 895.2M in the FY 2019/20 to Kshs 
813.5M in FY 2020/21. This reduction constrained the attainment of the Agency’s expanded 
mandate that presently adds on research and development, as well as capacity building for the 
energy and nuclear power sector.
As the Agency transitions into FY 2021/22, we remain committed to building on the gains made 
so far in developing the Nuclear Power Programme and enhancing the coordination frameworks 
for research and development, and capacity building for the energy and petroleum sectors.
On behalf of the Board of Directors, I express gratitude to the Ministry of Energy, development 
partners, the management, staff, and all our stakeholders for their continued support as we 
strive to achieve our mandate.

Mr Ezra Odondi Odhiambo 
Chairman, Nuclear Power and Energy Agency

xi.

On  behalf  of  the Board of Directors, I take pleasure in present-
ing the Nuclear Power and Energy Agency’s Annual Report 
and  Financial   statements   for  the year  ended  30th  June 2021.

In a bid to make  Kenya  ready  for  Nuclear   Power generation, the
International   Atomic  Energy  Agency(IAEA)  conducted   a  Phase1 
Integrated  Nuclear  Infrastructure  Review (INIR) mission in  Au-
gust 2015. The IAEA INIR   mission   is   designed   to   assist   Member                                                          
States in evaluating the status of their national infrastructure for the 
introduction   of a nuclear  power programme. In October 2018, Kenya 
requested  the IAEA  to conduct  a follow  up   INIR  mission  to review 
the   status   of  implementation  of   the recommendation  from the  2015
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June, 2024

Notes FY 2023/2024 FY 2022/2023

ASSETS Kshs Kshs

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 13       112,878,611  67,784,388 

Receivables from non-exchange transactions 14(a)         12,937,966  57,322,718 

Total Current Assets       125,816,577  125,107,106 

  

Non-current assets  

Long Term receivables(Mortgage & Car loan Funds) 14(b)       317,270,000  317,285,000 

Property, plant and equipment 15       101,422,298  107,865,558 

Intangible Assets 16         14,897,388  16,343,645 

  

Total non - current assets       433,589,686  441,494,204 

  

Total assets       559,406,264  566,601,309 

  

Liabilities  

Current liabilities  

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 17         70,557,990  113,905,827 

Provisions 17              696,000  12,468,000 

Total current liabilities         71,253,990  126,373,827 

Non-current liabilities  

Non-current employee benefit obligation 18         25,132,546  10,707,362 

Total non-current liabilities         25,132,546  10,707,362 

  

Total liabilities         96,386,537  137,081,189 
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Chief Executive Officer   
CS Justus Wabuyabo, LLM (UoN)                

Date:

Head of Finance 
CPA Caren Oduor 
CPAK No: 6187        
Date:

Chairman of the Board
Mr. Ezra Odhiambo   

Date:

4.CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

  
INIR  mission. The follow up mission was conducted in June 2021. I am pleased to inform you 
that the INIR follow up mission pointed out that Kenya has made considerable progress in the 
development of the Nuclear Power Programme. Of note, Kenya has enacted a  national nuclear 
law and created a regulatory body with clear responsibilities for nuclear safety, security and 
safeguards. The Agency has also commenced assessing the nuclear legal framework and iden-
tifying other legislation that require review and developed a number of policies and strategies 
in key areas. The key areas include nuclear security and radioactive waste management with 
a view to enable the Government to make informed decisions on the introduction of nuclear 
power.
NuPEA finalized the preparation of a 5-year Strategic Plan for the period 2020 – 2025 in or-
der toincorporate the Agency’s expanded mandate in accordance with the Energy Act No.1 of 
2019. This Plan builds on and complements the 15-year roadmap for Kenya’s Nuclear Power 
Programme. Importantly, the Strategic Plan also takes cognizance of the national development 
agenda as contained in various policy documents including the Constitution of Kenya (2010), 
Vision 2030 and the Big Four Agenda
The Agency places great premium on both local and international stakeholder engagement 
through concerted effort towards adopting strategic and mutually beneficial collaborative agree-
ments. The Agency recognizes that strong strategic partnerships are pivotal in enhancing ef-
fective implementation of its mandate. These partnerships support NuPEA’s commitment to 
promoting and implementing Kenya’s Nuclear Power Programme, carrying out research and 
development and capacity building in the energy and petroleum sectors. 
In the year under review, the Agency steered through a myriad of challenges. The Covid-19 
pandemic and the attendant restrictions imposed by the Government on movement impeded 
some critical activities that included international visits and training programmes. In addition, 
our budgetary allocation was significantly reduced from Ksh 895.2M in the FY 2019/20 to Kshs 
813.5M in FY 2020/21. This reduction constrained the attainment of the Agency’s expanded 
mandate that presently adds on research and development, as well as capacity building for the 
energy and nuclear power sector.
As the Agency transitions into FY 2021/22, we remain committed to building on the gains made 
so far in developing the Nuclear Power Programme and enhancing the coordination frameworks 
for research and development, and capacity building for the energy and petroleum sectors.
On behalf of the Board of Directors, I express gratitude to the Ministry of Energy, development 
partners, the management, staff, and all our stakeholders for their continued support as we 
strive to achieve our mandate.

Mr Ezra Odondi Odhiambo 
Chairman, Nuclear Power and Energy Agency

xi.

On  behalf  of  the Board of Directors, I take pleasure in present-
ing the Nuclear Power and Energy Agency’s Annual Report 
and  Financial   statements   for  the year  ended  30th  June 2021.

In a bid to make  Kenya  ready  for  Nuclear   Power generation, the
International   Atomic  Energy  Agency(IAEA)  conducted   a  Phase1 
Integrated  Nuclear  Infrastructure  Review (INIR) mission in  Au-
gust 2015. The IAEA INIR   mission   is   designed   to   assist   Member                                                          
States in evaluating the status of their national infrastructure for the 
introduction   of a nuclear  power programme. In October 2018, Kenya 
requested  the IAEA  to conduct  a follow  up   INIR  mission  to review 
the   status   of  implementation  of   the recommendation  from the  2015
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Notes FY 2023/2024 FY 2022/2023

Kshs Kshs

Net assets  

Reserves       118,518,313  118,518,313 

Accumulated surplus       344,501,414  311,001,807 

Total net assets       463,019,727  429,520,120 

  

Total net assets and liabilities       559,406,263  566,601,309 
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets for the 
Year Ended 30 June, 2024

 Fund Account Accumulated  
Surplus

Total

Kshs Kshs Kshs

At 1 July 2022 118,518,313 321,426,770 439,945,083

Deficit for the period (30,359,165) (30,359,165)

Prior period adjustments (1,420,087) (1,420,087)

Capital/Development grants received 
during the year

21,354,289 21,354,289

At 30 June 2023 118,518,313 311,001,807 429,520,120

 

At 1 July 2023 118,518,313 311,001,807 429,520,120

Surplus for the period 10,582,557 10,582,557

Prior year adjustment 12,120,000 12,120,000

Capital/Development grants received 
during the year

- 10,797,050 10,797,050

At 30 June 2024 118,518,313 344,501,414 463,019,727

*Note
The prior year adjustment relates to directors’ fees provision for the financial years 2019-2022 
written off in the period under review as per the recommendations of the Auditor General during 
audit of the financial statements for FY 2022/23. 
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Statement of Cash flows for the Year Ended 
30 June, 2024

 Notes Budget Current 
year

FY 2023/2024 FY 2022/2023

 Kshs Kshs Kshs

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts

Transfers from other government 
entities

6 1,009,506,493 1,009,506,493 873,000,000

Prior year Exchequer Receipts 14 45,000,000

Other income 7 - 1,398,482 752,714

Total Receipts 1,009,506,493 1,055,904,975 873,752,714

Payments

Use of goods and services 8(a) 410,406,493  524,738,923.67 418,619,476

Employees costs 9(a) 482,100,000  433,525,751.37 458,013,352

Board expenses 10 30,000,000  31,554,959.12 29,105,737

Repairs and maintenance 12 10,500,000  10,194,067.21 21,214,640

Total Payment 933,006,493  1,000,013,701 926,953,206

 

Net cash flows from operating 
activities 

55,891,279 (53,200,492)

 

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant, 
equipment and intangible assets

15 76,500,000 (10,797,050) (21,354,289)

Increase in non-current receivables -

Net cash flows used in investing 
activities

76,500,000 (10,797,050) (21,354,289)

 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and 
cash equivalents

45,094,229 (74,554,781)

Cash and cash equivalents at 1July 
2023

13 67,784,388 142,339,169

Cash and cash equivalents at 30 
June 2024

13 112,878,617 67,784,388
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Details Amount(Ksh)

Surplus as per Statement of performance                 10,582,557 

Add  

Depreciation Expense for the period                 18,686,569 

Purchase of non -financial assets                 10,797,050 

Employee costs for prior period paid                 19,982,176 

Less  

Accrued use of goods and services for the period               (49,157,119)

Surplus as per Statement of budget                 10,891,233 

Notes on Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual amounts

Note 1. Reconciliation of Budget and Statement of Financial Performance
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1.	 General Information
The Nuclear Power and Energy Agency (NuPEA), 
formerly Kenya Nuclear Electricity Board (KNEB), is 
a State Corporation established under the Energy 
Act 2019. It is charged with the responsibility of pro-
moting and implementing Kenya’s nuclear power 
programme, carrying out research and develop-
ment for the energy sector.

Towards attainment of its mandate, the Nuclear 
Power and Energy Agency shall develop policies 
and legislation, undertake public education and 
awareness, identify suitable sites for the construc-
tion of Nuclear Power Plants; carry out research, 
development and innovation on energy technol-
ogies as well as capacity building for the energy 
sector.

2.	 Statement of Compliance and Basis of 
Preparation 

The financial statements have been prepared on 
a historical cost basis except for the measurement 
at revalued amounts of certain items of property, 
plant and equipment. The preparation of financial 
statements in conformity with International Pub-
lic Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) allows the 
use of estimates and assumptions. It also requires 
management to exercise judgement in the pro-
cess of applying the Agency’s accounting policies.

The financial statements have been prepared and 
presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the function-
al and reporting currency of the Nuclear Power 
and Energy Agency.

The financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with the Public Finance Management 
(PFM) Act, the State Corporations Act, Energy Act 
2019 and International Public Sector Accounting 
Standards (IPSAS) (Accrual Basis). The accounting 
policies adopted have been consistently applied to 
all the years presented.
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Standard Effective date and impact:

IPSAS 43 Applicable 1st January 2025
The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, 
presentation, and disclosure of leases. The objective is to ensure that lessees 
and lessors provide relevant information in a manner that faithfully represents 
those transactions. This information gives a basis for users of financial 
statements to assess the effect that leases have on the financial position, 
financial performance and cash flows of an Entity.
The new standard requires entities to recognise, measure and present 
information on right of use assets and lease liabilities. 
There is no expected impact of the standard to the Agency financial 
statements as there are no active leases.

IPSAS 44: Non- Current 
Assets Held for Sale 
and Discontinued 
Operations

Applicable 1st January 2025
The Standard requires, Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for 
sale to be measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs 
to sell and the depreciation of such assets to cease and:
Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be presented 
separately in the statement of financial position and the results of 
discontinued operations to be presented separately in the statement of 
financial performance.  
There is no expected impact of the standard to the Agency’s financial 
statements.

IPSAS 45- Property Plant 
and Equipment

Applicable 1st January 2025
The standard supersedes IPSAS 17 on Property, Plant and Equipment. IPSAS 
45 has additional guidance/ new guidance for heritage assets, infrastructure 
assets and measurement. Heritage assets were previously excluded from the 
scope of IPSAS 17 in IPSAS 45, heritage assets that satisfy the definition of PPE 
shall be recognised as assets if they meet the criteria in the standard. IPSAS 45 
has additional application guidance for infrastructure assets, implementation 
guidance and illustrative examples. The standard has clarified existing 
principles e.g valuation of land over or under the infrastructure assets, under- 
maintenance of assets and distinguishing significant parts of infrastructure 
assets.
There is no expected impact of the standard to the Agency’s financial 
statements. 
The Agency shall continuously access any impact that may arise in future to 
ensure compliance to the provisions of the standard.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

3.	 Adoption of New and Revised Standards

i.	 New and amended standards and interpretations in issue effective in the year ended 30 
June 2024

	 There were no new and amended standards issued in the financial year.
ii.	 New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not effective in the year ended 

30 June 2024
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Standard Effective date and impact:

IPSAS 46 
Measurement

Applicable 1st January 2025
The objective of this standard was to improve measurement guidance across 
IPSAS by:
i.	 Providing further detailed guidance on the implementation of commonly 

used measurement bases and the circumstances under which they 
should be used.

ii.	 Clarifying transaction costs guidance to enhance consistency across 
IPSAS;

iii.	 Amending where appropriate guidance across IPSAS related to 
measurement at recognition, subsequent measurement and 
measurement related disclosures.

The standard also introduces a public sector specific measurement bases 
called the current operational value.
The Agency is in the process of assessing any impact of the standard on the 
Agency’s financial statements

IPSAS 47- Revenue Applicable 1st January 2026
This standard supersedes IPSAS 9- Revenue from exchange transactions, 
IPSAS 11 Construction contracts and IPSAS 23 Revenue from non- exchange 
transactions. This standard brings all the guidance of accounting for revenue 
under one standard. The objective of the standard is to establish the principles 
that an entity shall apply to report useful information to users of financial 
statements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and 
cash flow arising from revenue transactions.
There is no expected impact of the standard to the Agency’s financial 
statements.
The Agency shall continuously access any impact that may arise in future to 
ensure compliance to the provisions of the standard.

IPSAS 48- Transfer 
Expenses

Applicable 1st January 2026
The objective of the standard is to establish the principles that a transfer 
provider shall apply to report useful information to users of financial 
statements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of expenses 
and cash flow arising from transfer expense transactions. This is a new 
standard for public sector entities geared to provide guidance to entities that 
provide transfers on accounting for such transfers.
There is no expected impact of the standard to the Agency’s financial 
statements. The Agency shall continuously access any impact that may arise 
in future to ensure compliance to the provisions of the standard.

IPSAS 49- Retirement 
Benefit Plans

Applicable 1st January 2026
The objective is to prescribe the accounting and reporting requirements 
for the public sector retirement benefit plans which provide retirement to 
public sector employees and other eligible participants. The standard sets the 
financial statements that should be presented by a retirement benefit plan.
There is no expected impact of the standard to the Agency’s financial 
statements.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

iii.	 Early adoption of standards.
The Entity did not early – adopt any new or amended standards in year 2023/2024
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4.	 Summary of Significant Accounting 
Policies

a)	 Revenue Recognition
i)	 Revenue from non-exchange transactions 
	 Transfers from other government entities 
	 Revenues from non-exchange 

transactions with other government 
entities are measured at fair value and 
recognized on obtaining control of the 
asset (cash, goods, services and property) 
if the transfer is free from conditions 
and it is probable that the economic 
benefits or service potential related to the 
asset will flow to the Agency and can be 
measured reliably. To the extent that there 
is a related condition attached that would 
give rise to a liability to repay the amount, 
the amount is recorded in the statement 
of financial position and realised in the 
statement of financial performance over 
the useful life of the assets that has been 
acquired using such funds.

b)	 Budget Information
The original budget for the current year FY 2023-
2024 was approved by the National Assembly in 
June 2023. Subsequent revisions or additional ap-
propriations were made to the approved budget 
in accordance with specific approvals from the 
appropriate authorities. The additional appropria-
tions are added to the original budget by the entity 
upon receiving the respective approvals in order to 
conclude the final budget. 

The Entity’s budget is prepared on a different basis 
to the actual income and expenditure disclosed in 
the financial statements. The financial statements 
are prepared on an accrual basis using a classifi-
cation based on the nature of expenses in the 
statement of financial performance, whereas the 
budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amounts 
in the financial statements were recast from the 
accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified by 
presentation to be on the same basis as the ap-
proved budget. A comparison of budget and ac-
tual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis 
to the approved budget, is then presented in the 

statement of comparison of budget and actual 
amounts. 

In addition to the Basis difference, adjustments to 
amounts in the financial statements are also made 
for differences in the formats and classification 
schemes adopted for the presentation of the fi-
nancial statements and the approved budget.
A statement to reconcile the actual amounts on 
a comparable basis included in the statement of 
comparison of budget and actual amounts and 
the actuals as per the statement of financial per-
formance has been presented under page 6 of 
these financial statements.

c)	 Property, Plant and Equipment 
All property, plant and equipment are stated at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and impair-
ment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is di-
rectly attributable to the acquisition of the items. 
The Agency's assets are depreciated on a prorat-
ed reducing balance method, as assets can be ac-
quired at any time during the financial year.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Con-
tinued)

When significant parts of property, plant and 
equipment are required to be replaced at inter-
vals, the Agency recognizes such parts as indi-
vidual assets with specific useful lives and depre-
ciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major 
inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in 
the carrying amount of the plant and equipment 
as a replacement if the recognition criteria are sat-
isfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are 
recognized in surplus or deficit as incurred. Where 
an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction 
for nil or nominal consideration the asset is initially 
measured at its fair value.

d)	 Intangible Assets 
The Agency's assets are depreciated on a prorat-
ed reducing balance method, as assets can be ac-
quired at any time during the financial year. This 
approach ensures proper depreciation accounting 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
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for each acquisition date within the financial year.
Intangible assets acquired separately are initially 
recognized at cost. The cost of intangible assets 
acquired in a non- exchange transaction is their 
fair value at the date of the exchange. Following 
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at 
cost less any accumulated amortisation and accu-
mulated impairment losses. Internally generated 
intangible assets, excluding capitalised develop-
ment costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is 
reflected in surplus or deficit in the period in which 
the expenditure is incurred. The useful life of the in-
tangible assets is assessed as either finite or indef-
inite. The Agency Intangible Assets are amortised 
at a rate of 10% reducing balance.

e)	 Research and Development Costs
The Agency expenses research costs as incurred. 
Development costs on an individual project are 
recognized as intangible assets when the Agency 
can demonstrate:

i)	 The technical feasibility of completing the 
asset so that the asset will be available for 
use or sale

ii)	 Its intention to complete and its ability to 
use or sell the asset

iii)	 How the asset will generate future eco-
nomic benefits or service potential

iv)	 The availability of resources to complete 
the asset

v)	 The ability to measure reliably the expend-
iture during development

Following initial recognition of an asset, the asset is 
carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation 
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation 
of the asset begins when development is complete 
and the asset is available for use. It is amortised 
over the period of expected future benefit. During 
the period of development, the asset is tested for 
impairment annually with any impairment losses 
recognized immediately in surplus or deficit.

f)	 Provisions 
Provisions are recognized when the Agency has a 
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result 
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of re-
sources embodying economic benefits or service 

potential will be required to settle the obligation 
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount 
of the obligation.
Where the Agency expects some or all of a provi-
sion to be reimbursed, for example, under an insur-
ance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as 
a separate asset only when the reimbursement is 
virtually certain. 
The expense relating to any provision is presented 
in the statement of financial performance net of 
any reimbursement.

g)	 Contingent liabilities
The Entity does not recognize a contingent liabili-
ty but discloses details of any contingencies in the 
notes to the financial statements, unless the pos-
sibility of an outflow of resources embodying eco-
nomic benefits or service potential is remote.

h)	 Nature and purpose of reserves
The Agency creates and maintains reserves in 
terms of specific requirements. The reserve main-
tained by the Agency is capital reserve, where 
funds are set aside to purchase fixed assets. By set-
ting aside a reserve, the Agency segregates funds 
from the general operations.

i)	 Changes in accounting policies and esti-
mates 

The Agency recognizes the effects of changes in 
accounting policy retrospectively. The effects of 
changes in accounting policy are applied prospec-
tively if retrospective application is impractical.

j)	 Employee benefits 
Retirement benefit plans
The Agency provides retirement benefits for 
its employees. Defined contribution plans are 
post-employment benefit plans under which an 
Agency pays fixed contributions into a separate 
Agency (a fund), and will have no legal or con-
structive obligation to pay further contributions if 
the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all 
employee benefits relating to employee service in 
the current and prior periods. The contributions 
to fund obligations for the payment of retirement 
benefits are charged against income in the year in 
which they become payable.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
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Defined benefit plans are post-employment ben-
efit plans other than defined-contribution plans. 
The defined benefit funds are actuarially valued 
tri-annually on the projected unit credit method 
basis. Deficits identified are recovered through 
lump sum payments or increased future contri-
butions on proportional basis to all participating 
employers. The contributions and lump sum pay-
ments reduce the post-employment benefit obli-
gation.

k)	 Related parties 
The Agency regards a related party as a person or 
an entity with the ability to exert control individual-
ly or  jointly, or to exercise significant influence over 
the Agency, or vice versa. Members of key man-
agement are regarded as related parties and com-
prise the directors, the CEO and senior managers.

l)	 Service concession arrangements 
The Agency analyses all aspects of service con-
cession arrangements that it enters into in deter-
mining the appropriate accounting treatment and 
disclosure requirements. In particular, where a 
private party contributes an asset to the arrange-
ment, the Agency recognizes that asset when, and 
only when, it controls or regulates the services the 
operator must provide together with the asset, to 
whom it must provide them, and at what price. 

In the case of assets other than ’whole-of-life’ as-
sets, it controls, through ownership, beneficial en-
titlement or otherwise – any significant residual in-
terest in the asset at the end of the arrangement. 
Any assets so recognized are measured at their fair 
value. To the extent that an asset has been recog-
nized, the Agency also recognizes a corresponding 
liability, adjusted by a cash consideration paid or 
received.

m)	 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand 
and cash at bank, short-term deposits on call and 
highly liquid investments with an original maturity 
of three months or less, which are readily convert-
ible to known amounts of cash and are subject to 
insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank account 
balances include amounts held at various com-

mercial banks at the end of the financial year. For 
the purposes of these financial statements, cash 
and cash equivalents also include cash in hand as 
at the end of the financial year.

n)	 Comparative figures
Where necessary comparative figures for the pre-
vious financial year have been amended or re-
configured to conform to the required changes in 
presentation.

o)	 Subsequent Events 
There have been no events subsequent to the fi-
nancial year-end with a significant impact on the 
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 
2024.

5.	 Significant Judgments and Sources of 
Estimation Uncertainty 

The preparation of the Agency's financial state-
ments in conformity with IPSAS requires manage-
ment to make judgments, estimates and assump-
tions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, 
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure 
of contingent liabilities, at the end of the report-
ing period. However, uncertainty about these as-
sumptions and estimates could result in outcomes 
that require a material adjustment to the carrying 
amount of the asset or liability affected in future 
periods.

Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and 
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 
reporting date, that have a significant risk of caus-
ing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities within the next financial 
year, are described below. The Agency based its 
assumptions and estimates on parameters avail-
able when the consolidated financial statements 
were prepared. However, existing circumstances 
and assumptions about future developments may 
change due to market changes or circumstances 
arising beyond the control of the Agency. Such 
changes are reflected in the assumptions when 
they occur. IPSAS 1.140

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
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Useful lives and residual values
The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to inform potential 
future use and value from disposal:

a)	 The condition of the asset based on the assessment of experts employed by the Agency
b)	 The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and  processes
c)	 The nature of the processes in which the asset is deployed
d)	 Availability of funding to replace the asset
e)	 Changes in the market in relation to the asset

The Agency's assets are depreciated on a prorated reducing balance method, as assets can be acquired at 
any time during the financial year. This approach ensures proper depreciation accounting for each acquisi-
tion date within the financial year.

Provisions
Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available. Addi-
tional disclosure of these estimates of provisions is included in Note 17 and 18
Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obli-
gation at the reporting date, and are discounted to present value where the effect is material.
Assumptions were used in determining the provision of gratuity payable to employees at the end of the 
contractual period.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Asset Type Depreciation Rate

Motor Vehicle 25%

Office Equipment 12.50%

Furniture and Fittings 12.50%

Computers 33.30%
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

6.	 Transfer from Ministries, Departments and Agencies (MDAs)

The grant from the Ministry of Energy relates to actual exchequer receipt from The National Treasury during 
the financial year which is disbursed through the parent Ministry.

7.	 Other Incomes

The other incomes were raised through grants received from International Atomic Energy Agency (IAEA), 
interest changed on staff loans and compensation from WIBA as per Agency’s human resource policy.

Name of the Entity 
sending the grant

Amount 
recognized 

to Statement 
of Financial 

Performance

Total grant 
income during 

the period ended 
30 June 2024

Total Transfers FY 
2023-2024

FY 2022-2023

Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

Ministry of Energy  998,709,443  998,709,443  998,709,443 896,645,711

Ministry of 
Energy(Capital)

 -  10,797,050  10,797,050 21,354,289

Total  998,709,443  1,009,506,493  1,009,506,493 918,000,000

Description FY 2023/2024 FY 2022/2023

 Kshs Kshs

Grant from International Atomic Energy Agency 321,616 -

Interest on staff loans 64,232 119,026

Disposal of assets - 206,100

Compensation from WIBA 1,012,634 427,587

Total other income 1,398,482 752,713
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Description FY 2023/2024 FY 2022/2023

 Kshs Kshs

Telephone and internet services  11,559,709 11,796,919

Audit fees  348,000 348,000

Conferences ,seminars and workshops  46,450,603 33,466,973

Consultancy fees  7,333,800 9,692,300

Staff welfare  8,292,898 5,369,785

Water and Electricity  1,611,116 1,174,296

Office Supplies  8,217,660 6,241,685

Personal Protective Devices & Staff Uniform  -   975,000

Fuel and oil  9,710,528 5,881,734

Insurance  1,763,120 1,080,477

Cleaning Services  4,543,587 8,440,472

Litigation and Legal  fees  2,246,529 4,053,680

Licenses and permits  10,849,454 10,282,851

Training  33,367,259 22,310,685

Travelling expenses  10,553,644 8,160,103

Security expenses  4,223,900 1,839,062

Rent  6,422,543 5,914,139

Postage  83,506 109,402

Printing and stationery  17,134,920 14,513,518

Bank Charges  652,136 390,522

Membership and subscriptions  8,778,868 2,809,217

Publicity and advocacy(PA)  97,104,395 48,061,415

Nuclear  plant siting expenses(NPPD)  29,803,757 24,065,089

Nuclear policy Legislation(NPL)  37,873,996 38,320,911

Resource development for Nuclear power 
programme (RDNPP)  105,004,145 140,429,428

Research and development(RD)  9,752,225 7,751,869

Strategic Environmental and Social Assessment  1,009,600 26,464,189

Fines and Penalties  889,948 -

Total Use of goods and services  475,581,845 439,943,721

8.	 Use of goods and services

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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8(a). Use of goods and services

9.	 Employee Costs

9(a). Employee costs

Description FY 2023/2024 FY 2022/2023

 Kshs Kshs

Total use of goods and services  475,581,845 

Trade payables accrued 2022/2023  111,726,850 -

Trade payables accrued 2023/2024  (62,554,776) -

Total use of goods and services paid  524,753,919 418,619,476

Description FY 2023/2024 FY 2022/2023

 Kshs Kshs

Salaries and wages 404,676,153 366,713,344

Gratuity 19,392,649 16,389,493

Medical Expenses 24,303,136 30,049,559

Staff Group  life insurance 5,135,989 3,499,170

Employee costs 453,507,927 416,651,566

Description FY 2023/2024 FY 2022/2023

 Kshs Kshs

Total Employee costs 453,507,927 -

Accrued Staff receivables 2022/2023 (8,322,717) -

Accrued Staff receivables 2023/2024 8,486,767 -

Employee Benefit obligation 2022/2023 2,130,977 -

Employee Benefit obligation 2023/2024 (8,003,219) -

Total Non-current employee benefit obligation 
2022/2023

10,707,362 -

Total Non-current employee benefit obligation 
2023/2024 (25,147,546) -

Total employee costs paid 433,359,552 458,013,352

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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10.	 Remuneration of Directors 

11.	 Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

12.	 Repairs and Maintenance

13.	 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Description FY 2023/2024 FY 2022/2023

 Kshs Kshs

Chairman's Honoraria 960,000 960,000

Directors emoluments 25,194,228 15,138,263

Travelling Expenses 4,349,070 12,141,555

Medical expenses 1,051,661 865,920

Total Board expenses 31,554,959 29,105,737

Description FY 2023/2024 FY 2022/2023

 Kshs Kshs

Motor vehicle              7,891,101 10,036,040

Furniture and Fittings              3,743,073 4,362,688

Computers              3,872,020 2,702,964

Office  equipment              1,734,116 2,016,229

Intangible assets              1,446,259 1,724,004

Total depreciation and amortisation            18,686,569 20,841,926

Description FY 2023/2024 FY 2022/2023

 Kshs Kshs

Building 4,347,954 9,322,102

Equipment 1,368,460 7,331,408

Vehicles 4,477,653 4,561,130

Total repairs and maintenance 10,194,067 21,214,640

Description FY 2023/2024 FY 2022/2023

 Kshs Kshs

Current account 112,691,211 67,637,872

Cash in hand 187,400 146,516

Total cash and cash equivalents 112,878,611 67,784,388

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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13. (a) Detailed Analysis of Cash and Cash Equivalents

14.	 Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions

Financial institution FY 2023/2024 FY 2022/2023

 Kshs Kshs

Kenya Commercial Bank 85,068,848 3,926,486

National Bank of Kenya 27,578,654 49,773,754

Co-operative Bank of Kenya 43,709 13,937,631

Sub- total 112,691,211 67,637,872

Description FY 2023/2024 FY 2022/2023

 Kshs Kshs

a)Current receivables

Staff Receivables  8,637,966 8,322,717

Exchequer Receivable  -   45,000,000

Deposits  4,300,000 4,000,000

Total current receivables  12,937,966 57,322,717

b)Non-current receivables

Staff Mortgage fund  244,670,000 239,770,000

Staff Car loans Fund  72,600,000 77,515,000

Total non-current receivables 317,270,000 317,285,000

Total  receivables   330,207,966 374,607,717

Ageing Analysis- Receivables 
from non- exchange 
transactions

FY 2023-2024 Total % FY 2022-2023 Total %

Less than 1 year 8,486,767 66% 53,322,717 93%

Over 3 years 4,300,000 34% 4,000,000 7%

Total 12,786,767 100% 57,322,717 100%

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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16.	  Intangible Assets

17.	 Trade and Other Payables from Exchange Transactions

Ageing analysis: (Trade and other payables)

Description FY 2023/2024 FY 2022/2023

 Kshs Kshs

Cost

At beginning of year  20,483,541 20,483,541

Additions  -   -

At end of the year  20,483,541 20,483,541

Amortisation and impairment

At beginning of year              4,139,896                 2,415,892 

Amortisation              1,446,259                 1,724,004 

At end of the year              5,586,155                 4,139,896 

Net Book Value            14,897,386               16,343,645 

Description FY 2023/2024 FY 2022/2023

 Kshs Kshs

Trade payables  62,554,776 111,774,850

Employee Benefit obligation  8,003,219 2,130,977

Audit Accrued 696,000 348,000

Directors Fees payable - 12,120,000

Provision 696,000 12,468,000

Total trade and other payables 71,253,994 126,373,827

Ageing analysis: (Trade and other 
payables)

FY 2023-2024 Total % FY 2022-2023 Total %

Under one year 67,513,594 95% 110,861,427 88%

1 year and above 3,740,400 5% 15,512,400 12%

Total (tie to above total) 71,253,994 100% 126,373,827 100%

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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18.	 Non-Current employee benefit obligation

18(a)	Non-Current employee benefit obligation

19.	 Cash Generated from Operations

Description FY 2023/2024 FY 2022/2023

 Kshs Kshs

Gratuity 23,609,268 9,169,084

Pension 1,538,278 1,538,278

Total Non-current employee benefit 
obligation

25,147,546 10,707,362

Description Gratuity Pension Total

 Kshs Kshs Kshs

Balance b/f 9,169,084 1,538,278 10,707,362

Additions 17,264,654 - 17,264,654

Provisions utilised (2,824,470) - (2,824,470)

Total provisions year end 23,609,268 1,538,278 25,147,546

 Description FY 2023/2024 FY 2022/2023

 Kshs Kshs

Deficit for the period before tax            10,582,557 (30,359,166)

Adjusted for:  

Depreciation            18,686,569 20,841,926

Non-Current Liabilities            14,425,184 (45,705,254)

Purchase of non- financial assets            10,797,050 21,354,289

Working Capital adjustments  

(Increase)decrease in receivables            44,399,746 (41,613,229)

(Increase)Decrease in provisions                            - (696,000)

Increase(Decrease) in payables          (55,119,832) 24,397,029

Prior year adjustment            12,120,000 (1,420,087)

Net cash flow from operating activities            55,891,273 (53,200,492)

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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20.	 Financial Risk Management

i)	 Credit Risk
The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements representing the 
Agency’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral obtained is 
made up as follows;

The customers under the fully performing category are paying their debts as they continue trading. The 
credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and hence the Agency has not made any provision 
for uncollectible debts as all the credit risk is employee related.

ii)	 Liquidity Risk
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the entity’s directors, who have built an ap-
propriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the entity’s short, medium and 
long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The entity manages liquidity risk through con-
tinuous monitoring of forecasts and actual cash flows.

The table below represents cash flows payable by the entity under non-derivative financial liabilities by their 
remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contrac-
tual undiscounted cash flows.  Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as the impact 
of discounting is not significant.

 Total Amount Fully Performing

 Kshs Kshs

As at June 2024

Receivable from non-exchange transactions 12,937,966 12,937,966

Bank balances 112,691,211 112,691,211

Total 125,629,177 125,629,177

As at June 2023

Receivable from non-exchange transactions 57,322,717 59,986,654

Bank balances 67,637,872 67,637,872

Total 124,960,589 127,624,526

 Less than I 
month

Between 1-3 
months

Over 5 
months

Total

 Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

As at June 2024

Trade payables 42,200,058 4,951,863 15,402,854 62,554,775

Provisions - 348,000 348,000 696,000

Employee benefit obligation 8,003,219 - - 8,003,219

Total 50,203,277 5,299,863 15,750,854 71,253,994

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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iii)	 Market risk
The Agency has put in place an internal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk faced by the entity on 
an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its internal accounting and operational 
controls.
Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices and foreign 
exchange rates which will affect the entity’s income or the value of its holding of financial instruments. The 
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable 
parameters, while optimising the return. Overall responsibility for managing market risk rests with the Audit 
and Risk Management Committee.

The NuPEA’s Finance Department is responsible for the development of detailed risk management policies 
(subject to review and approval by Audit and Risk Management Committee) and for the day to day imple-
mentation of those policies.

The Agency has no exposure to market risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk since 
the Agency does not trade in foreign currency nor does it hold financial instruments in foreign currency.

iv)	 Capital Risk
The objective of the entity’s capital risk management is to safeguard the Board’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. The entity capital structure comprises of the following funds:

Description FY 2023/2024 FY 2022/2023

 Kshs Kshs

Revaluation Reserve 6,104,440 6,104,440

Retained Earnings 295,648,073 313,902,237

Capital Reserve 139,872,602 139,872,602

Total Funds 441,625,115 459,879,279

Total Borrowings - -

Cash and Bank Balances 112,878,611 67,784,388

21.	 Contingent Liabilities

Description FY 2023/2024 FY 2022/2023

 Kshs Kshs

Court cause ELCEPPET  No. 3 of 2023 Malindi 
“Mkoba Ngolo & another VS NuPEA & 2 others 
and three interested parties

160,000,000 -

Contingent Liability arising from procurement of 
Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) which was 
contested in court by one of the bidder. The case 
was awaiting determination in court as the close 
of the financial year.

99,573,000 -

Total 259,573,000 -

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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The Agency did not make any sale to related parties or incur expenses on behalf of related parties. 

22.	 Events after the Reporting Period
There were no material adjusting and non- adjust-
ing events after the reporting period.

23.	 Ultimate and Holding Entity
The entity is a State Corporation under the Ministry 
of Energy. Its ultimate parent is the Government of 
Kenya.

24.	 Currency
The financial statements are presented in Kenya 
Shillings (Kshs).

25.	 Related Parties Disclosure.

Nature of related party relationships
Entities and other parties related to the Agency in-
clude those parties who have ability to exercise con-
trol or exercise significant influence over its operat-

Description FY 2023/2024 FY 2022/2023

 Kshs Kshs

Transactions with related parties

a)Sales to related parties N/A N/A

Total N/A N/A

B) Purchases from related parties

Purchases of electricity from Kenya Power 91,166 1,044,917

Purchase of water from govt service providers 129,379

Training and conference fees paid to govt. Agencies 8,360,022 12,954,490

Total 8,451,188 14,128,786

b) Grants /transfers from the government

Grants from national government 1,009,506,493 918,000,000

Total 1,009,506,493 918,000,000

c)Expenses incurred on behalf of related party N/A N/A

Total N/A N/A

d) Key management compensation

Directors’ emoluments 31,554,959 29,105,737

Compensation to key management 89,788,661 109,038,180

Total 121,343,620 138,143,918

ing and financial decisions. Related parties include 
management personnel, their associates and close 
family members.

Government of Kenya
The Government of Kenya is the principal share-
holder of the Agency , holding 100% of the Agency 
’s equity interest. The Government of Kenya has pro-
vided full guarantees to all long-term lenders of the 
Entity, both domestic and external.

Other related parties include:
1.	   The Ministry of Energy and Petroleum 
2.	 County Governments
3.	 Other SCs and SAGA in Kenya
4.	  Key management.
5.	 Board of directors

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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20
Appendix I: Implementation Status of Auditor-
General’s Recommendations

The following is the summary of issues raised by the external auditor, and management comments that 
were provided to the auditor.

Reference 
No. on the 
external 
audit 
Report

Issue / 
Observations 
from Auditor

Management comments Status:
(Resolved / Not 
Resolved)

Timeframe:

1 Irregular 
utilisation of 
Petroleum 
Development 
Levy funds

The Agency budget for FY 
2022-2023 was subjected 
to the budgeting process 
as provided for in the PFM 
Act 2012.The parliament 
appropriated the budget and 
thus there was no breach of 
law.

Not Resolved
Report has not been 
tabled before the 
Parliamentary Investment 
Committee (PIC) of the 
National Assembly for 
deliberations.

2 Failure to 
prepare financial 
statements for 
Staff Mortgage 
and Car Loans 
Fund

The Agency  has prepared 
the financial statements and 
reports for staff mortgage 
and car loans during the 
current financial year which 
will be submitted for Audit 
as stipulated in the Public 
Finance Management Act 
,2012

Not Resolved
Report has not been 
tabled before the 
Parliamentary Investment 
Committee (PIC) of the 
National Assembly for 
deliberations

3 Irregular 
Procurement 
for Consultancy 
Services 
Enterprise 
Resource 
Planning (ERP) 
Implementation

Having a list of registered 
suppliers in the category 
of consultants for ICT 
Consultancy Services the 
Agency opted to use the list 
and invited the consultants 
under Quality & Cost Based 
Selection (QCBS) as the 
most suitable method for 
consultancy services.

Not Resolved
Report has not been 
tabled before the 
Parliamentary Investment 
Committee (PIC) of the 
National Assembly for 
deliberations

NUCLEAR POWER AND ENERGY AGENCY  ANNUAL REPORTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
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Reference 
No. on the 
external 
audit 
Report

Issue / 
Observations 
from Auditor

Management comments Status:
(Resolved / Not 
Resolved)

Timeframe:

4 Irregular 
Reallocation of 
Funds

The reallocation was done 
on  approval by the Board of 
Directors of the Agency.

Not Resolved
Report has not been 
tabled before the 
Parliamentary Investment 
Committee (PIC) of the 
National Assembly for 
deliberations

5 Outstanding 
PAYE Penalties 
and Interest

The Agency filed and paid 
all the outstanding PAYE 
penalties and interest 

Not Resolved
Report has not been 
tabled before the 
Parliamentary Investment 
Committee (PIC) of the 
National Assembly for 
deliberations

6 Non-compliance 
of Mortgage Loan 
Terms

Management acknowledged 
the typographical error in the 
Agency scheme regulations, 
which incorrectly stated 
the maximum repayment 
duration as 25 years. However, 
auditors were provided with 
evidence demonstrating 
that no beneficiary has had 
their mortgage repayment 
duration set at 25 years, 
but rather at 20 years in 
compliance with the SRC 
circular.

Not Resolved
Report has not been 
tabled before the 
Parliamentary Investment 
Committee (PIC) of the 
National Assembly for 
deliberations

NUCLEAR POWER AND ENERGY AGENCY  ANNUAL REPORTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
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Appendix III: Inter-Entity Transfers

 FY 2023/2024    

a. Recurrent Grants    

  Bank Statement Date Amount (KShs) Financial Year

  18/08/2023 66,250,000 2023/2024

  18/09/2023 66,250,000 2023/2024

  13/10/2023 66,250,000 2023/2024

  07/11/2023 66,250,000 2023/2024

  07/12/2023 66,250,000 2023/2024

  29/12/2023 66,250,000 2023/2024

  06/02/2024 66,250,000 2023/2024

  13/03/2024 66,250,000 2023/2024

  17/04/2024 66,250,000 2023/2024

  21/05/2024 66,250,000 2023/2024

  12/06/2024 66,250,000 2023/2024

  28/06/2024 66,250,000 2023/2024

  Total 795,000,000  

b. Development Grants    

  27/02/2024 170,000,000 2023/2024

  28/02/2024 50,000,000 2023/2024

  13/03/2024 20,000,000 2023/2024

  18/03/2024 25,000,000 2023/2024

  04/07/2024               (50,493,507) 2023/2024

  Total 214,506,493  

Break down of Transfers from the State Department of Energy

The above amounts have been communicated to and reconciled with the parent Ministry

Manager Finance						      Head of Accounting Unit
NuPEA								        Ministry of Energy

Sign	 ---------------						      Sign------------ 
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P.O. Box 26374 - 00100, Nairobi 

+254 (20) 5138300
info@nuclear.co.ke  
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Dedan Kimathi Avenue, Mombasa.

+254 (20) 5138300
info@nuclear.co.ke  
www.nuclear.co.ke
@nuclearkenya
Nuclear Kenya
nuclearkenyablogspot.com
nuclear kenyaNuclear


